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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

GrouPr’s REVENUE

HK$ million
2,000 1,802
1,500
1,000 914 902
500
2010 2011 2012

Grour’s REVENUE Mix IN YEAR 2012

Urban Building management
infrastructure and other services

Property Assembly ~ 4% 1%

6%

Property leasing
16%

Property
development
73%

Grour’s TOoTAL ASSET

GrouUP’s REVENUE BY SEGMENTS

HK$ million Property Assembly
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500 483
250 100
0 |
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HKS milion Property Development
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HKS million Property Leasing
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ProFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

HK$ million
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HK$ million
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

It is my great pleasure to announce that the past year was an important development milestone for Soundwill
Group, with overall business achieving a record high profit performance since its listing. With positive contributions
from the Group’s luxury residential project, WarrenWoods, a respectable revenue was recorded during the year,
whilst profit attributable to shareholders increased by 58% to a record high of HK$3,330 million, reaching a record
high over the years.

During the year, the Group launched its brand new luxury residential project Park Haven. Located in the core area of
Causeway Bay, the development was well received by the market, with over 90% of units sold. The overwhelmingly
positive feedback was very encouraging to us and fully affirmed the market’s recognition on the Group’s high-
quality brand and development capability.

Supported by various favourable factors such as stable local consumption demand and the growth of visitor arrivals
to Hong Kong, the retail industry of Hong Kong has achieved satisfactory growth in recent years, the Group’s
flagship rental property, Soundwill Plaza, is expected to register an impressive rental growth. Located at Russell
Street in Causeway Bay, one of the most expensive streets in the world, the property’s occupancy rate was
maintained at a high level, thereby generating substantial and steady income for the Group in the long run.

With the successive completion of various residential and commercial development projects in the coming years,
together with the favourable increase in rental income from our core investment property portfolio, the Group is
now set to embark on a new phase of growth. The Group will continue to identify high-quality properties in Hong
Kong’s property market, so as to capitalize on all revenue enhancing opportunities and to foster the Group’s long-
term development.

Looking ahead, Hong Kong economy is expected to grow mildly. While the lingering sovereign debt crisis and
resulting recession risks in Europe remain the key market concerns, the Group will continue to devise appropriate
development strategies in accordance to the market demand and economic situation by retaining core flagship
projects for long-term investment purposes whilst, successively developing new projects to improve our asset
turnover rate and recurring cash flow, thereby contributing stable profits to the Group in the long run.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our Board, our management team, and all our
committed staff for their contributions during the past year. | look forward their continued support in bringing us
sustainable results and creating long-term value for our shareholders.

Foo Kam Chu, Grace

Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 March 2013
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

FOO Kam Chu, Grace, aged 69, is the founder and Chairman of the Group. Madam Foo has extensive experience
in the property market. She has been engaged in the property business in Hong Kong since early 1970s, particularly
specialised in the acquisition of old buildings for redevelopment into commercial or residential buildings. Madam
Foo is currently responsible for the Group’s overall development direction and strategies. Furthermore, she serves
as a standing committee member of the 10th, 11th and 12th Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and has been elected as an honorary citizen of Guangzhou and executive
committee member of the 10th Guangdong Province (Women) Members Association. She is familiar with the
political and economic affairs of the PRC.

CHAN Wai Ling, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company. She is in charge of the Hong Kong property
department and is responsible for the property development and leasing of Hong Kong properties of the Group.
She graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a bachelor degree in commerce and also obtained a
Master of Business Administration Degree from University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom. Before joining the Group
in September 1998, she had worked in an international property consultant firm and had operated her own property
investment business for more than five years.

KONG Siu Man, Kenny, aged 50, is the Executive Director in charge of the property development of the Group. Mr.
Kong graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Chartered Surveyor of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors of Hong Kong, a Registered Professional Surveyor and an Authorized Person under Buildings
Ordinance of Hong Kong SAR Government. He joined the Group in 2009 and has over 25 years of experience in the
mainland China and Hong Kong property market.

LAU Kam Kwok, Dickson, aged 45, is the Executive Director and Financial Controller in charge of the finance and
treasury of the Group. Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in accountancy. He joined the Group in 2010
and has over 20 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Directors’ Profile

CHAN Kai Nang, aged 67, appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2009,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Management Studies from The University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of
Laws from the University of London. Mr. Chan is an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the UK and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. Mr. Chan has been a top level executive with substantial
experience in major multinational and local corporations. He had been the regional controller and senior executive
of these corporations for many years. Mr. Chan was the executive director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
(formerly known as K. Wah Construction Materials Limited) and managing director of K. Wah Construction Materials
Limited. The shares of the above-named company are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is currently an adviser of
K. Wah Construction Materials Limited. Mr. Chan was also appointed as independent non-executive director of
Asian Capital Holdings Limited, the shares of which listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
and Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange
respectively.

PAO Ping Wing, aged 65, appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 November
2009, received a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian
Institute of Technology in Bangkok, Thailand. Mr. Pao was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of
Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was also an ex-Urban
Councillor. In the past 20 years plus, he has been actively serving on government policy committees and statutory
bodies, especially those of town planning, urban renewal, public housing, culture and arts and environment matters.
Mr. Pao is an Hon. Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He is also an independent non-executive director
of several other companies listed on the Stock Exchange including Oriental Press Group Limited, UDL Holdings
Limited, Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited, New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited, Zhuzhou CSR Times
Electric Co., Ltd. and Maoye International Holdings Limited.

NG Chi Keung, aged 64, appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 March 2011.
Mr. Ng holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 30 years of financial management experience with renowned
multi-national corporations. Mr. Ng was the executive director of Fairwood Holdings Limited for 15 years until his
retirement at the end of year 2009 and re-designated as non-executive director after his retirement.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
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Overview

Despite the unfavourable factors arising from the global economic uncertainty and softening economic outlook in
the PRC in 2012, the Group successfully maintained its long-term strategic business practices and development
objectives. By adopting a pragmatic and prudent sales strategy, the Group will continue to aim to capture the best
sales opportunities for our development projects, so as to reap stable returns for shareholders.

The implementation of the Special Stamp Duty (SSD) and Buyer’s Stamp Duty (BSD) by the government at the end
of the previous year had invariably hindered the Group’s property assembly and old building acquisition business.
While adopting a “wait-and-see” attitude, the Group would welcome the prompt issuance of clearer guidelines by
the government in this regard. Though further details of BSD are yet to be announced, the Group has no intention
to alter its sales and development strategy in respect of its property projects. The Group will continue maintain its
regular acquisition procedures as well as operation and management methods to cater for the needs of owners of
old buildings. Further, the Group will proactively provide suitable assistance to the property owners, so as to uphold
its objectives maintaining sustainable development of the community whilst concurrently striking a better balance
between the commercial development and environmental preservation. The Group will seize the right opportunities
that are in the interests of the Group’s profit and development endeavours, with a view to continuously identifying
suitable land parcels and increasing land bank.

Driven by the growth of the property development business in Hong Kong, the Group has performed well during the
year. The Group’s luxury residential project in Tai Hang, WarrenWoods, was completed and accounted for during
the year. In addition, the Group’s brand new luxury residential project in Causeway Bay, Park Haven, was launched
for pre-sale during the year and received enthusiastic response from buyers and investors in the market, with over
90% of the units now sold. The Group has successfully met its sales target.

With the sustained growth of Hong Kong’s economy, high employment rate and improved income prospects,
consumer sentiment continued to driven to new heights. In addition, the growing number of tourists to Hong Kong
will further stimulate the local retail market and fuel the demand for retail premises. To capitalize on such market
opportunities, the Group successfully acquired an investment property at 10 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui and
the transaction was completed in the first quarter of 2013.

With the inclusion of Soundwill Plaza, following the anticipated opening of Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown in Causeway
Bay, and the completion of the No.10 Knutsford Terrace acquisition in Tsim Sha Tsui, the Group will have a land
bank of approximately 550,400 square feet for commercial leasing by 2013, thereby strengthening the Group’s
source of rental income. Further, vital market conditions such as high employment rates, continued growth in salary
among the Hong Kong population, low interest rates and limited supply of new units will also drive growth in the
local residential market. The Group will continue to stay ahead of market developments, and will also manage its
property portfolio and seek for investment opportunities cautiously, so as to grasp the best sales opportunities for
is property developments.
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Operations Review and Prospects

LLand Bank

During the year, the Group has not only maintained an active presence in the acquisition of old buildings in various
districts of Hong Kong Island, but also aggressively acquired quality property projects to strengthen its existing land
portfolio. The Group has also stepped up its efforts in revitalizing the local environment and enhanced the quality of
buildings and auxiliary facilities, which will benefit new and existing owners alike.

To capture business opportunities in the local market and to reinforce its market presence, the Group has actively
participated in urban redevelopment projects. Paralleled to this, the Group will also look for locations with strong
potential outside of Hong Kong Island, so as to increase its land bank at a reasonable cost. Through careful
assessment of the investment property portfolio, projects with higher appreciation potential will be selected and
reserved for our own development purposes, so as to enhance the profitability of the Group.
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Operations Review and Prospects

Property Assembly

As mentioned in the preceding section, the implementation of the Special Stamp Duty (SSD) and Buyer’s Stamp
Duty (BSD) by the government impacted upon the Group’s property assembly and old building acquisition business.
That said, the Group will continue with its usual practice in respect of acquisition and operation and management
methods which will take into account of the needs of owners of old buildings. Our property assembly strategy will
be a balanced one, with sustainable development of the community on the one hand and with the protection of
environmental interests on the other.

Throughout our history, the Group’s has along with the changing economy with success, and has captured
opportunities by achieving many ‘firsts’. The Group’s efforts in building up the redevelopment of old buildings in
urban areas have started to bear fruit, paving the way for further earnings growth in the years ahead. In 2012, the
turnover from this business segment was approximately HK$99,800,000 accounting for 6% of the Group’s turnover
for the year.

During the year, the Group has successfully disposed a number of projects. Details are as follows:-

17 AND 19 HING WAN STREET,
WAN CHAI

The Group entered into a Provisional Sale and
Purchase Agreement with an independent third
party on 28 September, 2011, in relation to the
disposal of 17 and 19 Hing Wan Street, Wan Chai,
for a consideration of HK$94 million. The project’s
permitted gross floor area upon redevelopment will
be approximately 16,000 square feet. The sales
transaction was completed on 18 January 2012,
three months ahead of the original schedule of 30
March 2012, locking in lucrative profits for the Group.
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Operations Review and Prospects

13-15 MERCURY STREET, NORTH POINT

The Group entered into a Provisional Sale and Purchase
Agreement with an independent third party on 20 June
2012, in relation to the disposal of 13-15 Mercury Street,
North Point, for a consideration of HK$180 million. The
sales transaction was completed on 10 October 2012,
representing another successful resale project subsequent to
the previous Hing Wan Street project.

The Group’s vision and dedicated efforts over years have shaped the evolution of certain areas with clusters of

premium developments. as follows:-

18-21 ScHooL STREET, Tar HAaNG

The unification of ownership of 18-21 School Street, Tai
Hang was completed in September 2011. The project site
area is approximately 2,250 square feet and is categorized
as a Category C site, which can be redeveloped into an
integrated residential and commercial complex, with a
maximum gross floor area of approximately 23,000 square
feet. On the other hand, the site can also be redeveloped
into a residential (Category A) property, with stunning sea
views and street-level commercial shops.

WarrenWoods, the Group’s first luxury boutique residential
project in Tai Hang, has achieved an outstanding sales
performance since its initial launch in 2010, setting an
example for the district’s rising property prices. In view of
Hong Kong Island’s rare supply of quality luxury housing,
the appreciation potential of properties in Tai Hang is
further enhanced, thus locking in impressive profits for the
Group.
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Operations Review and Prospects
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14-18 MOSQUE STREET,
WEST MID-LEVELS

The unification of ownership of 14-18 Mosque
Street, West Mid-Levels was completed in April
2012. The project site area is approximately 5,878
square feet and demolition works are currently
underway. The site can also be development
into a residential (Category A) property, with
a maximum gross floor area of approximately
49,000 square feet. Located next to the Central
to Mid-Levels Escalator, the project is just a few
minutes’ walk from the financial and commercial
hub of Central. The project is therefore located
in a district which is a popular residential
choice for business elites and expatriates with
keen demand for new and quality properties.
Such demand highlights the area’s rental and
investment prospects. Moreover, new boutique
luxury residential properties in the area have
been warmly received by investors, indicating
the market’s substantial demand for brand new
quality properties.
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Operations Review and Prospects

57 KiIN WAH STREET AND 66
ForT STREET, NORTH POINT

The unification of ownership of 57 Kin Wah
Street and 66 Fort Street, North Point was
completed in November 2011. The two sites
cover an area of approximately 3,240 square
feet. 66 Fort Street was previously a 6-storey
residential property, whereas 57 Kin Wah Street
was a 7-storey residential property (including a
two-storey basement). The combined site can
be redeveloped into a residential property with i
a maximum gross floor area of approximately | |
29,000 square feet. The future development of a | |
number of large-scale projects in North Point will |4
make a positive impact on property prices and
property development in the district.
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Operations Review and Prospects

301-305 CAsTLE PEAK RoAD, KwAl CHUNG

301-305 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung was acquired in November 2012 and has site
area of approximately 13,302 square feet. The project is blessed with prime geographical
location positioned within the transportation hub of Kowloon West and adjacent to Kwai
Hing MTR Station. It is also in close proximity to the airport, Container Terminal, as well as
Lo Wu and Lok Ma Chau. Amidst the city’s growing financial service industry, numerous
multinational corporations are setting up regional headquarters and offices in Hong Kong.
However, the supply of offices in the traditional core business districts in Hong Kong
is inadequate to cope with the demand for high-quality offices from these companies.
Seizing the market opportunity, the Group intends to redevelop the site to its utmost
potential, so as to maximize investment returns. The Group expects the government
will introduce further measures to facilitate the development of industrial buildings and
enhance their flexibility in developing. Therefore, the Group foresees that there will be
room for further development regarding industrial buildings.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to actively carry out its
property assembly and acquisition business. Through careful
planning and research, the Group will actively select sites with
high appreciation potential and retain certain projects for self-
development purposes. By utilizing our land resources and
exploring the best development proposals, the Group will stay
ahead of the changing market environment and create greater
returns for shareholders.

1-11 LA1 YIN STREET AND 2-12
JonNEs STREET, TAr HANG

A joint development agreement between the Group
and Henderson was signed on 31 August 2012,
in relation to the acquisition of 1-11 Lai Yin Street
and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang. The inaugural
agreement represents the first collaborative
redevelopment project between the two companies.

The project site area is approximately 6,530 square
feet, and is currently a 6-storey old building that is
classified as a residential (Category A) property.




Soundwill Holdings Limited

Operations Review and Prospects

Property Leasing

In 2012, the turnover from
this business segment was
approximately HK$295,856,000
accounting for 16% of the Group’s
turnover for the year.

SounbpwiLL PrLAzA

The Group’s flagship rental
property, Soundwill Plaza
has a gross floor area of
approximately 246,400 square
feet; including a retail store
area of approximately 18,300
square feet and a commercial
area of approximately 228,100
square feet. During the year, the
sustained favourable atmosphere
of the commercial and retail
sectors fuelled a growing demand for prime retail properties. The
rental performance of Soundwill Plaza has hence exceeded our
expectations. The annual occupancy rate maintained at a level of 99%
and generated a rental income of approximately HK$256,125,000. In
2012, around 34% of the leases were due, with the rental renewal rate
maintained at high levels. In the coming year, the Group will extend
its efforts to optimize its retail rental portfolio, strengthen
publicity and improve auxiliary facilities, in order to provide
a new shopping experience to different customers, thereby
maintaining its image as a quality Grade A commercial
building.

Buttressed by the continued high number of mainland
tourists, the number of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong in 2012
reached another record high, with an increase of more than
13%. With the continued economic growth in Hong Kong,
the city’s total retail consumer sales rose by 9%. Both the
number of transactions and the prices of street-level shops
and commercial buildings located in prime areas have hit
successive new highs. The leases of two street-level retail
premises under the project were newly signed in August
2012 and March 2013, with the rental rates increased by
more than 1.5 times. In addition, the rental rate of upper
level commercial units have also increased. Such favourable
factors have contributed to one of the most stable sources of
income for the Group.
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SounDwWILL Praza Il — MipTOWN

As a 31-storey building with an aggregate leasing
area of approximately 217,000 square feet,
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown is set to become the
new iconic landmark of Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Island. With unparalleled geographical superiority,
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown is located in the “Golden
Triangle” retail area of Causeway Bay and is adjacent
to the famous shopping boulevard of Russell Street
(reported as the world’s most expensive street). With
stunning views of Victoria Harbour and Causeway
Bay’s bustling metropolitan landscape, Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown
is set to deliver a fabulous shopping and entertainment experience
with diverse choices. The construction is expected to be completed in
the third quarter of 2013. There is a wide diversification of floor space
designs, ranging from duplex retail shop floors and skyline interactive
garden platform catering floors from G/F to 2/F of approximately
35,000 square feet. The ground floor to the 2/F is approximately
11,000-12,000 square feet, and standard floors is approximately
6,800-8,600 square feet. With an ingenious architectural design and
around-the-clock flexible supporting and management services by a
professional management team, the building will definitely become
the destination of choice for sizeable prestigious business merchants
and top-notch restaurants to establish their presence in the heart of
Causeway Bay in Hong Kong Island.
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Operations Review and Prospects

Property Development

In 2012, the turnover from this business segment was approximately HK$1,310,536,000 accounting for 73% of the
Group’s turnover for the year.

Soundwill Group strives to elevate its brand name through the provision of premium products and services and
by accelerating its asset turnover rate. As such, the Group will continue to strengthen its property development
business, so as to expand its profitability and development potential. Such endeavours will further fortify the
Group’s position in the property market. We will make the best use of our land resources and draw up the
optimal development proposals, in order to keep us ahead of the changing market environment and reward our
shareholders with rich returns. The splendid sales performance of the Group’s projects during the year was another
indication that buyers have cast a vote of strong confidence in the premium brands and quality of products and

services of the Group.

Residential Projects v

5
PARK &

PARK HAVEN

Also, in respect of property sales, the Group’s H A V E N

spot light residential property development, Park NO.38 HAVEN STREET
Haven, was launched for pre-sale in April 2012.

Located at 38 Haven Street, a deluxe area of Lee Garden, Causeway Bay, the
property boasts astounding views of Victoria Harbour and the luscious greenery
spanning from the Hong Kong Stadium to Jardine’s Lookout. The development is
also in the vicinity of Causeway Bay’s MTR Station and bustling shopping areas,
where numerous flagship stores of international elite brands and private clubs
cluster, giving a touch of exceptional luxury. The project provides approximately
190 residential units, with a salable gross floor area of about 131,000 square
feet. The area of standard units ranges from approximately 510 to 1,154 square
feet and the number of bedrooms varies from 1 to 3. Four units of distinguishing
features are also available, in order to cater for the needs of different buyers. The
design theme of the project is based on modern French style and accentuates
exceptional standards in terms of indoor materials, clubhouse facilities, landscape,
building shape and surrounding facilities. It is also furnished with an exquisite
clubhouse. As of December 2012, more than 90% of the units have been sold,
generating proceeds of approximately HK$2,400,000,000. The project is expected
to be completed by March 2014. As at the end of the year, the Group has received
proceeds from flat sale of approximately HK$406,458,000.

The Group’s utmost goal is to meet changing customer preferences and higher
quality expectations from the earliest stages of project design. The Group makes
great efforts to optimize the overall
planning of projects by providing
suitable combinations of units,
practical layouts and preferred
specifications including high ceilings
and sophisticated craftsmanship.
All these endeavours will help us
establish a strong brand image and
enhance the valuation prospect of
our property developments.
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WARRENWOODS

The Group’s landmark luxurious property development,
WarrenWoods is situated at 23 Warren Street, Tai Hang and
comprises 163 residential units of multi-dimensional designs. A
total of 162 units have been sold since the roll out of the project,
generating proceeds of approximately HK$1,212,133,000 and
provided lucrative profits for the Group. The remaining skyline
penthouse, with its gorgeous panoramic views of Victoria
Harbour, Jardine’s Lookout and the Hong Kong Stadium, will
be highly sought after in the market. With a prime location
in Jardine’s Lookout coupled with an excellent planning and
design concept, the development was honoured the “Best

Developer — Project Planning” award in the

“CAPITAL The Best Developer Awards”.

The award is a testament to the market’s

recognition and confidence in the Group’s -
m% projects and development strategy. g
!:u:l-%g1 ',.«H'
The handover of the project was completed in Zi
BERESREE/IE2012 late 2012 and enthusiastic market responses ;f:
CAPITAL The Besi Developer Awards 2012 were received. WarrenWoods is regarded by o
s many buyers as a preferred choice for home - :_,’.
- RER R a purchase and property investment purposes 7
ricd in terms of quality, environment and future z

| - .
El EWME®ER appreciation potential.

BOUKIWILL GROUP
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Commercial Projects
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SHARP

CAUSEWAY BAY

THE SHARP

Located at 11-13 Sharp Street East and 1-1A Yiu
Wa Street in Causeway Bay, the project site area
is approximately 3,200 square feet, with a planned
gross floor area of approximately 48,000 square
feet. The site is expected to be developed into a
complex commercial project that integrates retail
and office spaces in one. Located directly across
from Times Square, the development is bound to
become a preferred location for international brands
to setup their flagship stores. With a prime location
within the “Golden Triangle” retail area of Causeway
Bay, all 29 units available for sale under the project
were sold out within a single day on 3 January
2013, with the highest selling price achieving a
remarkable HK$48,100 per square foot (calculation
is based on total gross floor area). To capitalize on
the tremendous appreciation potential of street-level
commercial shops in Causeway Bay, the Group has
decided to retain the commercial shops from G/F to
2/F for rental purposes. The rental area is expected
to be 4,500 square feet and the rental rates will be
determined with reference to the top-grade street-
level commercial shops in Causeway Bay area. The
project is expected to be completed in the third
quarter 2015.




Annual Report 2012 23

Operations Review and Prospects

10 KNUTSFORD TERRACE,
Tsim SHA Tsuir, KowLoon

The Group successfully acquired No. 10 Knutsford
Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui on 29 November 2012,
for a consideration of HK$895,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 28 February 2013.
The transaction was the Group’s first commercial
property acquisition in 2012, and will further enhance
its overall rental and investment property portfolio both on Hong Kong Island and in Kowloon.
The property is a 23-storey commercial complex, with a site area of approximately 7,250
square feet and a maximum gross floor area of approximately 87,000 square feet (based on
a 12 times plot ratio).

The property is located in the core tourist and business district of Tsim Sha Tsui, and is just a
stone’s throw away from the nearest Tsim Sha Tsui MTR Station.

Identifying such opportunities in the market, the Group has since established itself as a
leading operator of quality commercial properties with the development of Soundwill Plaza,
Soundwill Plaza Il - Midtown and the recent investment in No.10 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha
Tsui. Such endeavours shall strengthen the Group’s rental income source in the long-run.
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Following the anticipated opening of Soundwill Plaza Il - Midtown in Causeway Bay and the completion of the
No. 10 Knutsford Terrace acquisition in Tsim Sha Tsui, the Group will have approximately 550,400 square feet for
commercial leasing by 2013.

The Group has extensive experience in developing quality commercial projects in Hong Kong. It is our active pursuit
to rejuvenate old districts and to bring a new lease of life and colour to those neighbourhoods. Soundwill Plaza
in Russell Street of Causeway Bay; Park Haven, a landmark luxury residential development near Lee Garden; and
WarrenWoods, an iconic boutique residential development in Tai Hang, Causeway Bay are notable projects that
showcase the Group’s track record in developing landmark projects in core districts of Hong Kong.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to utilize its land resources and explore the best development proposals,
so as to cater for the changing market environment and to realize the biggest commercial value of our projects.
Meanwhile, we will also cautiously grasp the prevailing opportunities to promote solid business growth, so as to
maximize the returns on investment for our shareholders.

The Group will continue to launch new projects, for sale as planned to boost asset turnover. The current
development land bank is sufficient for the Group’s needs over the next five years.

Property Management, E&M and Building Maintenance

The Group’s property management and maintenance subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of management
and maintenance services for the properties and facilities of large-scale commercial buildings as well as small
and medium-sized estates. These subsidiaries are highly experienced in the provision of quality services to its
owners and tenants. The property management team has strived in promoting energy conservation and carbon
reduction through the use of energy-saving measures, the management of indoor environmental quality as well as
the reduction of wastes during the period. In 2012, the turnover from this business segment was approximately
HK$17,699,000 accounting for 1% of the Group's turnover for the year. The turnover growth was mainly
attributable to restoration works prior the handover between the old and new tenants.

Moreover, Soundwill Plaza was awarded the “Good Indoor Air Quality Certificate” in March 2012 by the Department
of Environmental Protection, reaffirming the Group’s efforts in creating a pleasant working environment for its
employees and an amiable leisure and shopping environment for customers that visit the building.

“The Concierge French-Style Hotel Management Services”

During the year, the Group has pioneered to introduce
“The Concierge French-style Hotel Management
Services” to the property management of Park Haven,
the luxury residential project launched for presale during
the year. The service provides a wide range of French-
style and value-added management services, including
concierge services, dining and catering services, minor
household maintenance services, laundry and dry
cleaning arrangement services as well as home and car
cleaning referrals. Through the provision of caring and
comprehensive personal services, we aim to create an
environment for tenants to enjoy a high quality lifestyle.
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Soundwill Club

Established by the Group during the year, Soundwill
Club provides buyers and investors, as well as
visitors to the Group’s properties, with a platform
for the exchange of all kinds of living intelligence.
Soundwill Club covers a variety of high-quality
living intelligence promoted by Soundwill Group,
and promotes the interaction of art and taste with
members. Soundwill Club also provides customers
with superb services and activities, which are further
elaborations of Soundwill Group’s unwavering
commitment to excellence and eminence.

» SDUHG-‘#HI Club

Fatinum Memserbep Card

Customer Services

The Group’s quality services are extended to the offer of a comprehensive range of after-sales services subsequent
to the delivery of units to owners. The Group assures new home owners of delivery services of fine quality by setting
up a professional team which is dedicated to the detailed examinations of each of the newly completed units. The
newly occupied properties are entitled to the warranty of repair and maintenance services for an initial period of two
years. This warranty will help boost the confidence of homeowners.

To ensure that each newly completed unit is in perfect condition, thorough quality inspection is conducted to ensure
the highest standard of quality upon delivery to the owners. The handover team will also provide comprehensive
and attentive services during the handover period to ensure smooth procedure. The handover team not only
ensures the quality of newly completed units, but also collects feedbacks from the owners. The Group’s property
management subsidiaries are committed in providing high-quality customer services and further enhancing service
levels through continuous innovation.
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Business in Mainland China

Urban Infrastructure Development

Soundwill Infrastructure Limited is engaged in the provision of under ground telecommunication pipeline
construction services in a number of cities in the PRC, including Nanchang, Xi’an, Jingdezhen and Yuxi. It has
established collaborative relationships with local governments in respect of project developments and the laying of
cable networks, which are predominately used for the transmission of information and data for clients and for other
telecommunications and commercial purposes. Key clients include telecommunications operators such as China
Mobile, China Telecom and China Unicom. In 2012, the turnover from this business segment was approximately
HK$78,077,000 accounting for 4% of the Group's turnover for the year.

Real Estate Development

The Group’s unswerving dedication in developing quality residential projects in the PRC over the years has been
rewarded with encouraging results. Currently, the Group is developing a number of real estate projects across
different cities of Guangdong Province and Fujian Province in the PRC. Despite the changing international economic
situation and softening economic growth in the PRC, the government’s dedicated efforts in stimulating domestic
consumption will fuel a continued growth in the domestic economy, which will be favourable to the long-term
development of the real estate market in the PRC.

More than 83% of the units of Long Feng Chun Xiao (#E/Bl&EE) (a residential project located in Doumen, Zhuhai and
developed in cooperation with the joint venture partners) have been sold since its launch in 2010. This project also
generated turnover of approximately HK$98,403,000 (2011: HK$84,272,000) for the year.

The first phase of The Lakeview Bay (& /&%

=) ) (a villa and high-rise complex project
wholly-owned by the Group and located in Gaoyao
District, Zhaoging City) has been completed after a
brand new renovation process, and 140 twin-house
villas will be re-launched into the market on New Year’s
Day in 2013. The second phase, high-rise residential
units are also expected to be rolled out into the market
by the end of 20183. The project is located near to
the new Zhaoqing Xijiang Bridge, and is surrounded
by luscious green landscape and overlooks the vast
Xijiang River. Located in the core area of Zhaoging Bin
Jiang Xin Cheng, the project is blessed with promising
appreciation potential and is expected to contribute
remarkable profits for the Group.

Another residential project, Shan Shui Xiang Ri (LLU7K[A B), is expected to commence construction in 2013 and
will be available for pre-sale at the end of the year 2014. Yi Jing Yuan (A& &) and Zun Jing Yuan (B &E&) (two
residential projects located in Jiangmen, Kaiping) is expected to commence construction and will be available for
pre-sale in 2014. The proceeds from the above projects will be accounted successively, contributing to the Group’s
profits in the forthcoming years.
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Corporate Citizen

The Group believes that a better and more harmonious community can be created at different facets. Apart
from positively participating in charity fund-raising activities and encouraging our staff to take part in different
charity activities, we are also committed to improving the environment of old communities. In addition to constant
enhancement of the building designs, construction materials and property management quality, the Group also
takes into account the positive impact and benefit of the development on the community. The Group is also devoted
to implementing improvement works to enhance the community environment. These efforts have raised the quality
of the environment, which is in turn beneficial to the living standards of the residents within the community.

Walk for the Environment 2012 Charlty Walk

The Group took part in the fund-raising activity of the
Walk for the Environment 2012 as a Bronze Sponsor
for the second consecutive year in 2012. The theme of
the hiking competition was to promote of environmental
awareness and culture conservation, and started
from Ma On Shan Country Park, via a number of
environmental conservation attractions. More than
30 employees and two executive directors of the
Group teamed up to participate in the activity. Their
participation gave them a chance to sweat their brows
and test their physical fitness, and to raise funds for
environmental conservation. The activity helped arouse
the awareness of environmental protection and the love
for nature.

Soundwill Volunteer Team

To play an active role in the community, the Group
established Soundwill Volunteer Team, a social cause
to encourage its employees and their families to give
helping hands to those people who are in need. By
regularly sponsoring and participating in the Family
Story Telling program organized by the Hong Kong
Outlying Islands Women’s Association, the Group’s
Volunteer Team teaches positive attitudes among
school children and spread the spirits of love and care
through story-telling.

Also, in line with the Group’s long-lasting commitment
to enhancing environmental awareness in the office,
environmentally-friendly and energy-saving lighting
systems were used in the Group’s commercial
buildings. Activities such as paper recycling as well as
waste paper recycling and sorting were organized, in an
effort to build an energy-saving working environment.
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Caring Company

The concerted efforts of the Group’s management and employees in
making positive contribution to the community were commended by
three social welfare organizations. The Group was honoured as a Caring
Company by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service. The Group,
in conjunction with its member companies and property projects,
received a number of commendations, in recognition of our dedication
and efforts to fulfill social responsibilities and assume social corporate
responsibilities over the years.

Trace The City

To support local art and culture development, the Group organized Trace The City activity and invited the
participation of ten students from the Department of Visual Arts Education and Creative Arts and Culture of The
Hong Kong Institute of Education in August. The activity was themed with a core concept of “An artwork for an
inspiration”. The students were invited to pay guided field tour visits to Causeway Bay district from 6 to 10 August,
and to subsequently express their feelings and thoughts about those visits through different art forms such as light
and shadow art, drawing in colours, painting in watercolors, mixed collage and three-dimensional sculpture. By
holding the exhibition, we hoped to convey the local social culture through the artistic creation of young people, and
to pass the message of urban revitalization. Through the exhibition of the students’ works, the city’s old and new
memories were displayed to the public in new perspectives. The exhibition had a positive impact on the promotion

of the community culture.
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Communication with Shareholders
and Investors/Investor Relationship

Effective communication with shareholders is a crucial aspect of investor relations and will ultimately assist
the investment community in understanding the Group’s business performance and development strategies.
The Group hence strives to promote continuous dialogue with our shareholders and investors via different
communication channels, including interviews, telephone conferences, overseas roadshows and project site visits.
The Group proactively stays in touch with the press through news releases notices, announcements and other
promotional materials, as well as media briefings and media interviews after its results announcements. The Group
is also committed to enhancing corporate transparency and will provide timely disclosure of information on the
Group’s developments to help shareholders and investors make investment decisions.

The Group is devoted to enhancing corporate governance on business growth and strives to attain a balance
between corporate governance and performance. The Board of Directors believes that sound corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and will enhance shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance

The Group strives to deliver the highest standard of corporate governance. Coupled with the strong support of
an excellent management team, we have established a highly effective Board of Directors to actively participate in
investor relations activities.

The Group is committed to the practice of sound corporate governance. Efforts are made to maintain interactive
communication with stakeholders including investors, analysts and credit rating agencies and the media. We
provide and disclose information relating to the Group’s corporate strategy and latest business development.
In order to ensure the highest level of corporate transparency, the Company will distribute relevant corporate
information to shareholders and other stakeholders in a timely manner. In addition, the Group will further strengthen
its connection with global investors through frequent involvement in large-scale investors meetings and briefings.
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Prospects

Looking ahead, the global economic environment will remain challenging and uncertain this year, as the ongoing
European sovereign debt crisis and the risk of economic recession arising therefrom remain major concerns in
the market. The U.S. economy will also be affected by tax increases and spending cuts in early 2013. However,
supported by a low interest rate environment and recent monetary measures implemented by the European Central
Bank as well as the possible relaxation of monetary policies by other major non-European central banks, the risks
of a global economic downturn will be lowered.

Despite the softening economy in Mainland China, we believe Hong Kong’s economy will continue to sustain a
reasonable level of growth. In addition, improved income prospects, low mortgage rates and limited supply of new
residential units will together stimulate the local real estate market. In the medium to long term, along with the
recent implementation by the Hong Kong government of a series of relevant policies, especially measures relating
to the increase in housing and land supply and the speeding up of the approval of building plans, it is anticipated
that the balance of supply and demand in the residential property market will be improved.

The Group’s rental income performance is expected to remain strong. Thanks to our well executed strategies and a
relatively stable rental market environment, the overall occupancy rate of our rental property portfolio is expected to
be maintained at a high level, hence rental renewals and new rates will continue to be on the rise. The Group’s rental
income, with contribution from investment properties to be completed, will be further enhanced. Such investment
properties include No.10 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui, an acquisition transaction which was completed on 28
February 2013, and Soundwill Plaza Il - Midtown, which is scheduled for completion in the third quarter of 2013.

Keeping in tune with the impressive performance of its property sales and the significant improvement in various
aspects of its business operations during the year, the Group will continue to monitor the developments of the
market, and adopt a prudent management approach on its property portfolio and investment strategy. We will also
adopt a balanced sales strategy to capture optimal selling opportunities for our property developments. The Group
will strive for more brilliant results in the next financial year.

The Group is dedicated to building premium properties and providing services of superb quality. We constantly
strive to raise the brand appeal of our core properties. While optimizing our tenant mix, we also provide better
products and services through the strengthening of the superior quality of our brand, in order to accelerate
the turnover of assets and strengthen the business of the development of properties for sales. Looking ahead,
the Group will progress further enhancement at various operational levels, and will endeavour to maintain
high standards of management, planning, execution and corporate governance. All these efforts will help us
move towards our goal of sustainable growth, so as to further present more promising results and reward our
shareholders with more lucrative returns.
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Financial Highlights

Year ended 31 December

2012 2011
Turnover HK$1,802 million HK$902 million
Profit attributable to owners of the Company HK$3,330 million HK$2,111 million
Basic earnings per share HK$12.0 HK$8.0
Dividend per share HK$0.2 HK$0.13

At 31 December 2012 At 31 December 2011

Total assets HK$17.9 billion HK$14.7 billion
Net assets HK$13.8 billion HK$10.3 billion
Total borrowings HK$3.0 billion HK$3.5 billion
Gearing ratio 22% 34%
Net asset value per share HK$49.1 HK$37.3

Results of Operations

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover recorded of approximately HK$1,801,968,000 (2011:
HK$901,690,000), representing a significantly increase as compared with last year. The substantial increase
in turnover was due to the delivery of our luxury residential development, WarrenWoods, located at Tai Hang,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Selling expenses mainly represents the sales commission paid for the pre-sale launch of our another luxury
residential development “Park Haven” located in Causeway during the year. Substantial increase in administrative
expenses also due to expansion of various team such as marketing team, construction team and project
development team in order to cope with the expansion of the Group. Increase in finance cost was mainly due to
increase in average borrowing cost.

Furthermore, the increase in fair value of investment properties was due to the revaluation gain of our Group’s core
investment property, Soundwill Plaza, located at Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

During the year, the Group has achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,330,143,000 (2011: HK$2,111,219,000), an increase of 58% as compared with last year. This increase was
mainly due to profit from our sales proceeds luxury residential development, WarrenWoods and a gain on fair value
adjustments on investment properties during the year.

Net Assets

The total net asset of the Group as at 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$13,802,206,000 (2011:
HK$10,277,734,000). Net asset per share as at 31 December 2012 is HK$49.16 (2011: HK$37.38).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$615,421,000 (2011:
HK$571,944,000). Total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$2,993,501,000 (2011: HK$3,509,413,000) as
at 31 December 2012.

During the year under review, the Group has received proceeds of approximately HK$406,458,000 from the buyers
of the Group’s recent brand new luxury residential project, Park Haven, in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s gearing ratio (which was expressed as a percentage of total borrowings
over total equity) was 22% (2011: 34%). As at 31 December 2012, the net assets of the Group amounted to
HK$13,802,206,000 (2011: HK$10,277,734,000).

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arises from the exchange rate movement between Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi in relation to its PRC operations. Given that the sustained appreciation of Renminbi would
have a positive impact on the Group’s assets in the PRC and turnover generated from the PRC, the Group had not
implemented any hedging measures during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Group did not engage in any derivative activities or use any financial instruments
to hedge its balance sheet exposures.

Acquisition and development of properties are financed partly by internal resources and partly by bank borrowings.
Repayment of bank loans are scheduled to match asset lives and project completion dates. Borrowings are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and bear interest at floating rates.

Contingent Liabilities

(@) During the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened and held in the name of certain subsidiaries
on behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building management services. As at the
reporting date, those bank balances which were held on behalf of third parties and were not accounted
for in the books of account and financial statements of the Group amounted to HK$5,439,000 (2011:
HK$4,322,000).

(b) Since the Group commenced legal proceedings HCA 1902/2009 against a joint venture partner in 2009, with
whom the Group has a joint venture agreement for the development and construction of village houses in
the New Territories, the Group filed a re-amended statement of claim in December 2012. The exchange of
pleadings are still ongoing and the trial date is yet to be fixed by court.

In view of the Group’s legal advisor unable to assess the likely outcome, provision for impairment on amount
due from the jointly-controlled entity and provision for legal costs which amount to HK$15,565,000 and
HK$4,200,000 are made respectively.

Employees Remuneration

The Group had 172 and 241 employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively as at 31 December
2012. Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance, experience and prevailing market
practice. Remuneration packages comprise salary, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund and year end
discretionary bonus. Total salaries and wages incurred in 2012, if excluding share option expenses of approximately
HK$8,304,000 (2011: HK$8,931,000) were approximately HK$92,918,000 (2011: HK$66,125,000).
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The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices, namely, (a) mandatory code provisions that
a listed company must either comply with or explain its non-compliance, and (b) recommended best practices
that listed companies are encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory code provisions, save for the deviations discussed below.

Board of Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors of the Company”) is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The management has been delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the operations of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

Board Composition
The Board is composed of the following directors who, unless otherwise indicated, have served throughout the year
under review and up to the date of this report:

Executive Directors:

Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Wai Ling

Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny

Mr. Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kai Nang

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Ng Chi Keung

Board Meetings and Attendance
During the year, the Board met four times with attendance as follows:

Director Attendance
Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace (Chairman) 4/4
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 4/4
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny 4/4
Mr. Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson 4/4
Mr. Chan Kai Nang 4/4
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 4/4

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 9 to 10, which illustrate their diverse skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same person. Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace is the founder and the Chairman of the Group.
She is responsible for the Group’s overall development direction and strategies. The Chairman ensures the Board
functions effectively and discharges its responsibilities. There is no chief executive officer appointed and the daily
operations of the Group are delegated to other executive directors, the management and various department
heads. The Board is of the view that the current management structure can effectively facilitate the Group’s
operation and business development.

Term of Office of Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. Currently all the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”).

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the Bye-laws, not less than one-third of the Directors for the time being will retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting.

Responsibilities of Directors

Every newly appointed Director is ensured to have a proper understanding of the operations and business of the
Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and governance policies of the
Company. The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

Code provision A.1.8 provides that an issuer should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. During the year, the Group has not identified any insurer which would provide insurance
service to the Group on satisfactory commercial terms. As such, the Group has not yet arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three Independent Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chan
Kai Nang, who possesses professional accountancy qualifications. The Committee has specific written terms of
reference which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in the code provisions. It is responsible for
reviewing with management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discuss auditing,
internal controls and financial reporting including the interim and final results of the Company. It also acts as an
important link between the Board and the Company’s external auditor in matters within the scope of the audit of the
Group.
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During the year, the Committee met twice with attendance shown below. The final results for the year ended
31 December 2012 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2012 have been reviewed and
commented by the Committee.

Director Attendance
Mr. Chan Kai Nang (committee chairman) 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 2/2

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was set up on 12 September 2005 with specific written terms of reference.

Its functions are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
remuneration, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy. The Committee reviews and approves the directors’ remuneration proposals with reference to the board’s
corporate goals and objectives, and also determines with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors.

During the year, the Committee held two meetings (attendance as shown below) to review and determine (with the
relevant Directors where applicable abstained from voting as far as his/her own remuneration is concerned so that
no director would decide on his/her own remuneration) the remuneration package of executive directors.

Director Attendance
Mr. Chan Kai Nang (committee chairman) 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 2/2
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 with specific written terms of reference. The
responsibilities of the Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on selection of individuals nominated for directorship; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive (if any); and determining the policy for nomination of directors.

Members of the Committee during the year and up to the date of this annual report comprise the following
Directors:

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (committee chairman)
Mr. Chan Kai Nang
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

No meeting has been held by the Committee since its establishment.
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Directors’ Continous Professional Development

As part of the ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company Secretary continuously updates all directors on
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
of the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training courses on relevant
topics which may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 which has come into effect from 1 April 2012, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by attending training courses or by reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business and to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Company Secretary

Mr. Li Wai Cheung, Dennis, the Company Secretary, is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He reports to the Board
and assists the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently. During the year, he undertook not less than 15 hours
of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

Code for Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries with all
Directors, the Company confirms that all of them have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

Access to Information by Directors

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent to all Directors in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board
meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings and Board committee meetings,
reasonable notice is given.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related materials at all times. From April
2012 onwards, all Directors have been provided with the Group’s management information updates to keep them
informed of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

In determining the remuneration levels and packages of the Directors and senior management, the Company took
into account of the prevailing practices and trends to reflect on the commitments, duties and responsibilities of the
Directors and senior management and their contributions to the Group. Long term inducements in the form of share
options and performance bonuses were also employed.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year, the fee incurred for audit and non-audit services for the Group are approximately HK$3,496,000
(2011: HK$2,901,000) and HK$432,000 (2011: HK$432,000) respectively.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Group and presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Directors are not
aware of any material events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Internal Control

During the year, the Directors reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system covering material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Communications with Shareholders

The Company strives to establish communications with its shareholders and investors. In efforts to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company’s business in its interim and annual
reports, and on its website.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an opportunity for direct communications between the Board
and its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and the external auditor make efforts to attend the annual
general meetings to address shareholder queries. The Chairman and Directors of the Company along with key
management and the external auditor attended the 2012 AGM and addressed questions raised by Shareholders
about the Company’s business. The Company also responds to queries from its shareholders and investors and
welcomes their views and concerns at shareholders’ meetings to the Board or management direct.

Shareholders’ Rights

(i) Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting
A special general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s Head Office
and Principal Place of Business.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed by the Company.

(ii) Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing at the Company’s Head Office and
Principal Place of Business.

(iii) Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at shareholders’ meeting
The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition; or

b) not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary
statement, at the Company’s Head Office and Principal Place of Business in case of:-

(@) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(b) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to submit herewith their annual report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries include
property assembly, property development, property leasing and provision of building management services in Hong
Kong and urban infrastructure development and property development in Mainland China. Other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 103 to 212. The Board recommends a
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20 (2011: HK$0.13) per share for the year ended 31 December 2012, subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 15 May
2013 (“Annual General Meeting”). The final dividend will be payable on or about 18 June 2013 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 22 May 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in notes 20 and 47 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group at the reporting date are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity on pages 110 and 111 and in note 36 to the financial statements respectively.
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Share Options

Particulars of the share option scheme, share options granted and movement are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

Properties/Properties under Development

Particulars of the major properties held by the Group and properties under development of the Group are set out
on pages 44 and 45.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 46.

Directors

The Directors of the Company are listed on page 6. Their biographical information is set out on pages 9 to 10.

Pursuant to Bye-laws 86(2) & 87(1), Ms. Chan Wai Ling, Mr. Chan Kai Nang and Mr. Ng Chi Keung, will retire from
office at the Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

1. Directors’ Interests in the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)) which are required to be (i) notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares:

Approximate

Number of Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity SHETES Shareholding
Foo Kam Chu, Grace Interest of controlled Corporation 192,630,028Mote) 68.61
Beneficial owner 96,602 0.03

Kong Siu Man, Kenny Beneficial owner 102,000 0.04

Note: These 192,630,028 shares represented the aggregate of (i) 190,272,028 shares held by Ko Bee Limited; and (ii) 2,358,000 shares
held by Full Match Limited. All the aforesaid companies are ultimately owned and controlled by Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace.

(i) Long positions in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company — interests in
share options of the Company (having been granted and remained outstanding):

Number of Subscription

Shares in Price Price per

Capacity the Option Exercisable Period of Grant Share

(HK$) (HK$)

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Beneficial owner 550,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
Chan Wai Ling Beneficial owner 2,000,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
Kong Siu Man, Kenny Beneficial owner 300,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71

Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson  Beneficial owner 120,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
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Directors’ Interests and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

2. Directors’ Interests in Associated Corporations

Name of Number

Associated and Class of Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity Shares Shareholding
Foo Kam Chu, Grace Ko Bee Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100
Foo Kam Chu, Grace Full Match Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares and Debentures

Save as disclosed above and note 37 to the financial statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2012 were rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company granted to any Director or chief
executive of the Company or to the spouse or children under 18 years of age of any such Director or chief executive
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Part XV of the SFO, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable any such
persons to acquire any such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2012, the persons other than a Director or chief executive of the Company who have an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the Shares

Approximate
Number Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity of Shares Shareholding

Ko Bee Limited Beneficial owner 190,272,028 67.77

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company has not been notified of any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in (i) the paragraph under the heading of “Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares and Debentures”
above; and (i) paragraphs (a) to (f) under the heading of “Related Party Transactions” in note 42 to the financial
statements, no contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, approximately 13% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
approximately 25% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers.

During the year, approximately 5% of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
approximately 15% of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the Group’s five largest customers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Connected Transaction

During the year, other than those disclosure of which are exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.31 and 14A.65 of the
Listing Rules (details of such connected transaction being also related party transactions are mentioned in note 42
to the financial statements), the Group has entered into the following connected transaction:

On 21 November 2012, Champ Shine Limited (as purchaser) incorporated in Hong Kong, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional agreement with Gold Benefit Limited (the “Vendor”) for the
purchase of residential unit situated at 2nd Floor, No. 12 Lun Fat Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Unit”) for the
consideration of HK$6,000,000. The Vendor is a company controlled and beneficially owned by Ms. Chan Winnie,
the daughter of Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman and Executive Director of the Company) and younger sister
of Ms. Chan Wai Ling (Executive Director of the Company) and the Vendor is therefore a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.11 of the Listing Rules. As such, the purchase of the Unit constituted a connected
transaction for the Company and the details thereof were disclosed in the announcement dated 21 November 2012
published in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is
confirmed that there is sufficient public float of the Company’s shares in the market as at the date of this report.

Auditor

Due to a merger of the business of Grant Thornton (“GTHK”) and BDO Limited (“BDQO”) to practice in the name of
BDO as announced by the Company on 2 December 2010, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as auditor of
the Company effective from 2 December 2010.

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 13 May 2013 to Wednesday, 15 May 2013
(both days inclusive). In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Friday, 10 May 2013.

Closure of Register of Members for Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2013 to Thursday, 23 May 2013
(both days inclusive), during which no transfer of share will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Tuesday, 21 May 2013.

By order of the Board

Foo Kam Chu, Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2013
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LIST OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Location

Soundwill Plaza
38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown
1-29 Tang Lung Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

The Sharp

G/F-2/F, 11-13 Sharp Street East
and 1-1A Yiu Wa Street in
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PEEREIEM MR FFE
RE AEE

# Based on latest plan submitted.

Approximate
gross
floor area

(sqg.ft.)

246,400

217,000

4,600

823,8007

Interest

attributable

to the Group

100%

100%

100%

51%

Land use

Commercial

Commercial

Commercial

Residential

Lease term

Long-term lease

Long-term lease

Long-term lease

Medium-term
lease




Annual Report 2012 45

MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Approximate Interest
gross attributable Expected
Location floor area  to the Group Project status completion date
(sqg.ft.)
Park Haven 131,000 100%  Construction in 1H 2014
38 Haven Street, Causeway Bay, progress
Hong Kong
The Sharp 45,900 100%  Construction in 2H 2015
11-13 Sharp Street East, progress
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
®HHk5 — EAED 74,000 100%  Construction in 1H 2013
PEEEERRERLHE progress
R B
& EE(RONE) 992,800 85%  Construction in Ph1-1H 2013

BEmeEAEM AL KES progress Ph2-2H 2013
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets and liabilities of Soundwill
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and restated upon the adoption of the revised/amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as appropriate. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
Turnover 1,801,968 901,690 913,714 713,714 338,991
Profit before income tax 3,439,041 2,183,422 2,122,979 1,238,788 154,786
Income tax expense (117,785) (64,372) (56,551) (29,675) (26,405)
Profit for the year 3,321,256 2,119,050 2,066,428 1,209,113 128,381
Profit attributable to
owners of
the Company 3,330,143 2,111,219 2,059,658 1,214,283 131,410
Non-controlling interests (8,887) 7,831 6,770 (5,170) (3,029)
3,321,256 2,119,050 2,066,428 1,209,118 128,381

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
Non-current assets 13,525,364 11,296,772 10,220,206 7,311,591 6,285,001
Net current
assets/(liabilities) 342,025 (959,984) (2,297,027) (1,495,557) (1,697,280)
Non-current liabilities (65,183) (59,054) (560,373) (43,798) (41,931)
Non-controlling interests (255,653) (98,967) (90,998) (56,588) (33,472)
Equity attributable to
owners of
the Company 13,546,553 10,178,767 7,781,808 5,715,648 4,512,318
Gearing ratio* 22% 34% 39% 36% 53%

* expressed as a percentage of total borrowing over total equity
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Soundwill Holdings Limited (“the Company”) will be
held at 3:00 p.m., on Wednesday, 15 May 2013 at 36th Floor, Soundwill Plaza, 38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the reports of the directors and auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2012;

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012;

3. To elect directors and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the
directors;

4. To re-appoint auditor and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix their remuneration; and

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following ordinary resolutions, with or without
modifications:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A. “THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company may be listed
and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for
this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended
from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate number of Shares to be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue at the
date of passing of this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by applicable laws of Bermuda or the Company’s Bye-laws to be held; or

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general meeting.”
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B. “THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into Shares) which would or might require the
exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make and grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds,
debentures, notes and other securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into
Shares) which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate number of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted or
issued or dealt with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights
Issue (as hereinafter defined); or (i) an issue of Shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement
for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to the grantees as specified in such scheme or similar
arrangement of Shares or rights to acquire Shares; or (iii) an issue of Shares upon the exercise of
subscription or conversion rights under the terms of any existing warrants, bonds, debentures, notes
and other securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into Shares; or (iv) an issue of
Shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed
20 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue at the date of passing of this Resolution, and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution,
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:
() the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by applicable laws of Bermuda or the Company’s Bye-laws to be held; or

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general meeting; and
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“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares or issue of option, warrants or other securities giving the right
to subscribe for Shares, open for a period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of Shares
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (and, where appropriate, to holders
of other securities of the Company entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their
then holdings of such Shares (or, where appropriate, such other securities) (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to
the Company).”

C. “THAT conditional upon the passing of Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5A and 5B set out in the notice
convening this meeting (“this Notice”), the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company (“Shares”) pursuant to Resolution No. 5B set out in this Notice be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate number of Shares repurchased
by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution No. 5A set out in this Notice, provided
that such extended amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue at the date of
passing of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Foo Kam Chu, Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 April 2013

Head Office and Principal Place of Business:
21st Floor, Soundwill Plaza

38 Russell Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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Notes:

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and to vote instead of him. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

For Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 13 May 2013 to Wednesday, 15 May 2013
(both days inclusive). In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Friday,
10 May 2013.

In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a certified copy
thereof, must be delivered to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at 21/F, Soundwill Plaza, 38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

For Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 May 2013 to Thursday, 23 May 2013 (both
days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2013.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED

SHBEEFRAH

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 212, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BDO Limited
BRI EEFREAMEBAERIA

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHEEPIR
k& H2548

LB EBERRARILRR

(REFETME L2 ERAAF)

AARZERAD (AT BT B ER N FE 1032212
oG EEERAR(ERAR ) RAWMBAR(E
SEDHNEAMBEHREL  BER_F—-F1+_A
=t BENEGEARARFBHRRNREREZBILFE
BEA2HEKRAR  GaRAEHRNEARERE
R ONARTESHBRRBEEREMBEER

AR B R R R B AT

ERREFARARBEEEGHNATHEMN(ER
R RE LR REBCRRED) B EE R T REE
BUBHE  USHEAFBRRIELEEMAFHR
B REBEEBRRELRA VIS MER AL BN
B AESA MR T ERNIREERERMER
BB A SRR AL ©

A% B hil 1) B AT:
RAOEERBERMOF S URSHEAMBREINF
HER  WRBERE-NAN\—FRAEFO0KE
MEERRME - Rt 2SN BIEEAL B & - RIBET
BARE ZRE - AEAEEA LA EREEETE
T -

BMPCRIEFESFMAGRONCEREEL)E
TTEA - RFEUERBMETERAE - LHRE R
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BEAREHRRA -

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the International BDO network of Independent member firms.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number P05035

Hong Kong, 12 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
wie A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 E—T——F+-A=+—HILtFE

2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E BT T BEET I
Turnover BmER 6 1,801,968 901,690
Cost of sales $HE B (859,015) (580,559)
Gross profit BH 942,953 321,131
Other income EHA A 6 19,042 17,231
Selling expenses HEEM (67,177) -
Administrative expenses TIE A (186,426) (145,781)
Other operating expenses HEipigse e A (17,600) (3,885)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ
Wz, (EE) 43 121,040 (2,685)
Net gain on fair value adjustments on WEYE N ERAE S
investment properties HEFE 17 2,692,310 2,032,888
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—BREMEZ
Wz 17 3,311 461
Provision for amount due from jointly- JFE Uk [R5 I B BE S
controlled entity 2B 21 (15,565) -
Profit from operations #8493 5 M 3,491,888 2,219,360
Finance costs & AR 8 (49,729) (35,100)
Share of results of a jointly-controlled entity F‘?ﬂﬁ R R
BEREA 21 (3,118) (838)
Profit before income tax 3 Pt 45 52 i ¥ 9 3,439,041 2,183,422
Income tax expense Fr3fiA = 12 (117,785) (64,372)
Profit for the year AE N i 3,321,256 2,119,050
Other comprehensive income H A 2B 14
Exchange gain on translation of BMEGINEF I TSR E
financial statements of foreign operations 2 P& H Wz 11,681 9,028
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold building M EEFEHEH 8,932 2,482
Deferred tax liabilities arising from asset HELFEESHHE
revaluation reserve of leasehold building FrE A 2 BERIE
afE (1,474) (409)
Other comprehensive income for AR H A A WA
the year 19,139 11,101
Total comprehensive income for AR AR TN
the year 3,340,395 2,130,151
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RS

2012 2011
. i —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE BT T BT
Profit for the year attributable to: R AW A P9 ¥ R
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 13 3,330,143 2,111,219
Non-controlling interests eI (8,887) 7,831
3,321,256 2,119,050
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JE{% 482w UL A :
Owners of the Company KRBHA A 3,349,116 2,122,182
Non-controlling interests VTSR (8,721) 7,969
3,340,395 2,130,151
Earnings per share for profit attributable to 4N A/ 6l #EH A\ BEAG
owners of the Company during the year 5 Ji Vi 16
Basic AR HK$E%#11.987T  HK$EH8.057T
Diluted g HK$#E#11.915t  HK$E#8.007T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BMBIRNE

As at 31 December 2012 R=FT——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
. i —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & M

Non-current assets 3F?ﬁ§]§ﬁ
Investment properties REME 17 13,275,215 11,038,428
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENME 18 169,312 160,118
Properties held for development FERWE 19 46,328 46,672
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity — R AR E SRS 21 28,536 45,260
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMEEE 22 10 10
Intangible assets EBEEE 23 5,963 6,284
Goodwill EES 24 - -
13,525,364 11,296,772

Current assets B A
Inventories FE 25 42,348 43,022
Properties held for sale FHEYE 26 - 38,400
Properties under development BRAPYE 27 3,112,146 2,435,382
Trade and other receivables B 5 kE I IE 28 190,660 122,328
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties WY %Y B 454 123,719 7,557
Bank deposit at escrow account WEEEBREPE 2RI ER 29 291,087 185,675
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSEEY 30 615,421 571,944
4,375,381 3,404,308
Current liabilities B A fE

Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E M EMFRIE 31 460,875 312,427
Deposit received in advance FBUWET® 32 482,117 528,509
Borrowings ==Y 33 2,993,501 3,509,413
Provision for income tax P15 7 1 96,863 13,943
4,033,356 4,364,292
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE(AfE) 342,025 (959,984)
Total assets less current liabilities MG EMREAaE 13,867,389 10,336,788

Non-current liabilities Ik B A
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE 34 65,183 59,054
Net assets F & E 13,802,206 10,277,734
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ER G BRI

2012 2011
. i —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BEETIT
EQUITY W25
Equity attributable to owners of A wlHEA N AL HE2S
the Company
Share capital RE AR 35 28,076 27,494
Reserves B 36 13,518,477 10,151,273
13,546,553 10,178,767
Non-controlling interests I 452 ) BE 25 255,653 98,967
Total equity HE 25 4R % 13,802,206 10,277,734
Foo Kam Chu, Grace Chan Wai Ling
B REZ
Director Director
2 E2
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Statement of Financial Position
R

As at 31 December 2012 R=FT——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
. i —F——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = BT T BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & kg
Non-current assets 3“%@]%%
Interests in subsidiaries BB A Al 20 545,000 545,000
Current assets i B A
Amount due from a subsidiary FEW—R B AT FIE 20 279,710 267,356
Other receivables = | 291 291
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 169 139
280,170 267,786
Current liabilities i Bh £ 1F
Accrued expenses and other payables FERTE R RHA
FERTFRIE 301 196
Net current assets I 279,869 267,590
Net assets g 824,869 812,590
EQUITY )
Share capital [i}:d 35 28,076 27,494
Reserves EE 36 796,793 785,096
Total equity HE i 48 41 824,869 812,590
Foo Kam Chu, Grace Chan Wai Ling
Bk BREE
Director Director

EE EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HoBEeRaER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 E—ZT——F+-A=+—HILtFE

2012 2011
—E—_F =od—==tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & BT T BT
Cash flows from operating activities REEHENRZ
ﬁ%“ll%
Profit before income tax B P A5 30 A& A 3,439,041 2,183,422
Adjustments for: B TS EEIEL A2 -
Share of results of a jointly-controlled entity  FE{5F — 5K F R
e 21 3,118 838
Bank interest income HRITHEWA (6,546) (1,210)
Interest expenses B H 8 49,729 35,100
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - B K&
equipment BT E 18 5,284 4,479
Amortisation of properties held for FRERYEEH
development 19 1,019 1,135
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 23 480 471
Equity-settled share based payment ARy BERE 2
expenses X 8,304 8,931
Provision for legal costs/(write-back of) SRR B REE, R
provision for loss in litigation BRI (B E1) 4,200 (5,348)
Write-back of provision for obsolete BEFERERED
inventories (2,873) (1,344)
Provision for obsolete inventories BEATE SR - 220
Provision for impairment loss of trade 2 5 WG IRRE
receivables ik 596 743
Bad debts written off 2 BRI AR 193 251
Deposits for property acquisition written off Y IR EE ST S HIER 1,135 924
Provision for amount due from JREE L [ 422 o
jointly-controlled entity B BE 21 15,565 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWME BE
equipment NEE 2 BE 3 128
Property, plant and equipment written off ME - BB K ERE
i BR 18 364 58
Net gain on fair value adjustments on KEMENTFEFHE
investment properties IS EERE 17 (2,692,310) (2,032,888)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—BEREME Y
Iz (3,311) (461)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZ
(Uzs) B18 (121,040) 2,685
Operating profit before working capital BEcHEER 2
changes eyl 702,951 198,134
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other 5 % 5 o IR
receivables (%) @ (69,221) 36,863
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits paid for WEEYEZBEMETE
acquisition of properties (3gm),/ @ (117,297) 44,014
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERAD,/(3#Em) 3,548 (4,524)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEYERD 44,490 457,260
Decrease/(Increase) in properties under BREPYE
development w, (35 n) 422,520 (273,696)
(Increase)/Decrease in bank deposit at REEB R 2 RITFEH
escrow account (3m) R (105,412) 52,001
Increase in trade and other payables g5 hHMENRIE
1840 145,968 83,814
(Decrease)/Increase in deposit received BUET & CRid),
in advance (46,392) 106,724
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HoBima#

2012
—E—_F
HK$’000
BT T
Net cash generated from operations EXFBHRE T 981,155 700,680
Interest paid BEAFE (65,999) (52,959)
Income tax paid BERATEH (30,420) (55,264)
Net cash generated from operating activities #% & 2 7§ {538 < ¥ 58 884,736 592,457
Cash flows from investing activities BEFHH N RZ
HEens
Additions to property, plant and equipment R WIE¥ - WELEE 18 (5,822) (4,504)
Increase in amount due from a FEU — K RS E B
jointly-controlled entity FRIAIE N (1,959) (1,810)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME  WENMKRE
and equipment ZFT8 kI 1 370
Net proceeds from disposal of an investment & —IBIEEWE 2
property FTiS s B H 58 5,491 3,121
Payment to acquire investment properties WEREEZ MK 17 (715,047) (902,467)
Payment to acquire properties held for WESERMES
development INEAN 19 (376) (810)
Net cash inflow/(outflow)from disposal of HEMBARZIRE
subsidiaries A CR) F5 43 214,990 (20,855)
Purchase of net assets, net of cash acquired BB F&EE -
ke kERS 44 (4,789) -
Bank interest received EUERTTHIE 6,546 1,210
Net cash used in investing activities REZBTHE L FEE (500,965) (925,245)
Cash flows from financing activities MEWHRBNRZ
HeRE
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (1,277,836) (1,296,332)
Repayments of other loans BEAMER (92,877) (289,640)
Bank loans raised EERITEK 761,924 1,779,827
Other loans raised EEHMER 92,877 223,270
Capital injection from minority shareholders >8R ;T & 165,407 -
Proceeds from issue of the Placing Shares  1TECERRMN 2
FriEFaE 35 - 230,000
Issue expenses of the Placing Shares Ao & %10 2 BE1TRI 2 35 = (1,529)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TEREIRHE 7 Fr 8 3k 18 46,253 62,467
Final dividend paid T REARE 15(b) (35,887) (25,092)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing gt& %8 (FrHE)~
activities ELHEFE (340,139) 682,971
Increase in cash and cash equivalents HReRBESEEDE N 43,632 350,183
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—H—HZHER
WREZEh 571,944 217,779
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [R5 B 8 » FEH (155) 3,982

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+Z-H=+—HZ
Ba KB & FEY 615,421 571,944
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR Bl S B R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &z —Z—

—F+ZRA=T—HILFE

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
ADRHEEAELER
Asset
Share Share  revaluation
capital premium reserve
[EN RRE BEEMEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE-—5—-8—H 27,494 603,444 34,895
Exercise of share options 1B 582 55,754 -
Equity-settled share based payment (note 37) PARR 10 A2t 2 (R (B 5E37) - - -
Capital injection from minority shareholders DEREEE - - -
Final dividend paid for 2011 (note 15(b)) EN_Z——FRHKE
(KI5E15(0)) - - -
Transactions with owners BREEARS 582 55,754 -
Profit for the year FREF - - -
Other comprehensive income Hitr2E KA
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold building, HEEFEHAR BNk
net of deferred tax (note 14) ERFIE(FIE14) - - 7,458
Exchange gain on translation of MEINE RSB R 2
financial statements of foreign operations ek itlig - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEBALLE - - 7,458
Proposed final dividend for 2012 (note 15(a)) BT ERHERE
(PHzE15(a)) - - -
Under-provision for final dividend for 2011 —T—EXREKE
BETE - - -
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——-—5+-A=+-—-H 28,076 659,198 42,353
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—-—H—H 24,146 294,619 32,822
Placing of Shares (note 35) & e fn (P E35) 1,900 226,571 -
Exercise of share options Gl 1,448 82,254 -
Equity-settled share based payment (note 37) LA BB 2 31 (F 7E37) - - -
Final dividend paid for 2010 (note 15(0)) EN_E-ZFERIKRE
(BzE15(0)) - - -
Transactions with owners BEFBARS 3,348 308,825 -
Profit for the year FREF - - -
Other comprehensive income Hitp2EKA
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold building, HEEFEMHAR 2Nk
net of deferred tax (note 14) EEHE(HE14) - - 2,073
Exchange gain on translation of MENBE BT BRE 2
financial statements of foreign operations R - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEBALLE - - 2,073
Proposed final dividend for 2011 (note 15(a)) BRI ——FREKS
(FHzE15(a)) - - -
Lapse of share options ERELN - - -
Under-provision for final dividend for 2010 ZE-TERPRE
BESE - - -
At 31 December 2011 R=ZZB——F+ZA=+—H 27,494 603,444 34,895
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO B

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

LG 2PN
Employee
share-based Proposed Non-

equity Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividend Total interests equity

STk . .
BifiE R EA RBEE BhlRE BERERE B/ FERED BnAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
10,681 9,432,300 32,362 1,848 35,743 10,178,767 98,967 10,277,734
(10,083) - - - - 46,253 - 46,253
8,304 - - - - 8,304 - 8,304
- - - - - - 165,407 165,407
- - - - (35,887) (35,887) - (35,887)
(1,779) - - - (35,887) 18,670 165,407 184,077
- 3,330,143 - - - 3,330,143 (8,887) 3,321,256
- - - - - 7,458 - 7,458
- - 11,615 - - 11,5156 166 11,681
- 3,330,143 11,515 - - 3,349,116 (8,721) 3,340,395
- (66,153) - - 56,153 - - -
- (144) - - 144 - - -
8,902 12,706,146 43,877 1,848 56,153 13,546,553 255,653 13,802,206
23,600 7,357,145 23,472 1,848 24,156 7,781,808 90,998 7,872,806
- - - - - 228,471 - 228,471
(21,235) - - - - 62,467 - 62,467
8,931 - - - - 8,931 - 8,931
- - - - (25,092) (25,092) - (25,092)
(12,304) - - - (25,092) 274,777 - 274,777
- 2,111,219 - - - 2,111,219 7,831 2,119,050
- - - - - 2,073 - 2,073
- - 8,890 - - 8,890 138 9,028
- 2,111,219 8,890 - - 2,122,182 7,969 2,130,151
- (35,743) - - 35,743 - - -
(615) 615 - - - - - -
- (936) - - 936 - - -

10,681 9,432,300 32,362 1,848 35,743 10,178,767 98,967 10,277,734
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Yo 5 S B Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

2.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda.
The address of the Company’s registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
47 to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company'’s ultimate holding company to be Ko Bee Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of revised/amended HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2012
In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) have applied for the first time the
following revision and amendment to standards and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2012:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Transfers
of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial
assets, in particular where the reporting entity has
continuing involvement in financial assets that it has
derecognised. The newly required disclosures allow
users of financial statements to better understand the
risks to which the reporting entity remains exposed. And
such information is relevant in assessing the amount,
timing and uncertainty of the entity’s future cash flows.
The adoption of the amendment has had no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

1.
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B WA M

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. PRANA S BA s e e B ([ 7 o A s

He1) 1) (%)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not 2.2 ELAFA M AR A R BT ET ARG T A U
yet effective kol
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant UTA et AR EBNTERREBAO T
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, B G ET BS M B R ERE BB -

but are not yet effective and have not been early HARARN  WARENEBIZFERN -

adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvement 2009-2011 BB ERERER —EBETNESE
Cycle? CCHEY) —ET——FR
HAR) 4F 2 22
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other EFGFEAFE1S HazmEiks
(Revised) Comprehensive Income' AMERT (FEET) HE/MZE5
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and %.5 el EIETBEER
Financial Liabilities® 325K HEET e me
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and %T‘% PIEFREER RBEYBEEK
Financial Liabilities? ETHREET I e &2
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* %.5/%5 M mEEL MBIAY
EO%
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? EAMBRELER  HREMBHRE
FE109%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BERMBHELR  AETH?
FE1157
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other EEYEHRE LR H{ﬂ%ﬁj—%ﬁ‘]
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2009—
2011 Cycle
The improvements made amendments relevant to the
Group’s financial statements as follows:

(i)

(if)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to
present a third statement of financial position
when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the information
in that statement of financial position. The date of
the opening statement of financial position is the
beginning of the preceding period and not, as at
present, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period. The amendments also clarify that, except
for disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-44 and
HKAS 8, the related notes to the third statement of
financial position are not required to be presented.
An entity may present additional voluntary
comparative information as long as that information
is prepared in accordance with HKFRS. This may
include one or more statements and not a complete
set of financial statements. Related notes are
required for each additional statement presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
The amendments clarify that income tax relating
to distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. Depending on the circumstances
these items of income tax might be recognised in
equity, other comprehensive income or in profit or
loss.

(iii) HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarify that in interim financial
statements, a measure of total assets and liabilities
for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed when the amounts are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker and there
has been a material change in the total assets
and liabilities for that segment from the amount
disclosed in the last annual financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. PRANA S BA s e e B ([ 7 o A s
Hh ) (%)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not 2.2 ELAFA M AR A R BT ET ARG T A U

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future and those that
may not. Tax on items of other comprehensive income
is allocated and disclosed on the same basis. The
amendments will be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries
forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability
to use the power over the investee to affect those
returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on
the assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of
other individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e.
the holder has the practical ability to exercise them. The
standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as
principal or agent and also whether other parties with
decision making rights are acting as agents of the
investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and
for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10
may result in changes in those entities which are
regarded as being controlled by the Group and are
therefore consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued) 2. PRANA S BA s e e B ([ 7 o A s

$e ) (%)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not 2.2 T M G R A Bk BT BT R AE RT B s B
yet effective (Continued) R (A7)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS
31. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement, it is regarded as a joint operator and will
recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses arising from the joint arrangement.
Where the Group has rights to the net assets of
the joint arrangement as a whole, it is regarded as
having an interest in a joint venture and will apply the
equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11 does not
allow proportionate consolidation. In an arrangement
structured through a separate vehicle, all relevant facts
and circumstances should be considered to determine
whether the parties to the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, the
existence of a separate legal entity was the key factor
in determining the existence of a jointly controlled
entity under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be applied
retrospectively with specific restatement requirements
for a joint venture which changes from proportionate
consolidation to the equity method and a joint operation
which changes from equity method to accounting for
assets and liabilities.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosure requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related
to unconsolidated structured entities. The general
objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.

BB B EGERFE I - &t

R BMEERNEIRAIEN S S P E
ERGHERIEIIRAIENESE AR ERR
MERSEH - A2 RE—EDBRAEER
HAERA - WAKBEARZTEEELIN
BEREEBAEEAEE  ARBEAREGE
EFUIRERENALERELANEE - &
B WARFEX LD - WAREERETE
SETHNEREEFE  AREANAE
NRAGEE D UHEREREE - B8
B 75 3 o 2 B 58 11 5% 30 T fE FFER A L D1 4R
B EERABIL T AMBERLET  FE
HEEFERBERIETUER  UEF2H
RN E TR ARFERLHNEES
B U BIOERERNETERETER
BEIEAESURAEN KA EREST
ENETERE - HEMBREERNE5E
HEEWIER - X0 BB E i e PIAR & RS
AN A B RRI R ERANEER
BENENAEEE TIAED -

BB B EERFE 120 — RERA M ERE
A at
ERPBIESERE 12N ES BRI
DR BEDRRAR LSRR ER
E o AEREREER B ZERITRSIA
MWERTE  BREAHERAGTHABER
MIRERTE - ZEAN—RBBEZSHHR
REBEAFEEREENEMEENES
MWIEE R ER R ZERa Y 2 REENITE
WROFE o




Soundwill Holdings Limited & 855 E AR A Al

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) — Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture
capital organisations, pension funds and investment
funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than to consolidate them. The
amendments also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments are applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance
on how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices
for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements
on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted
early and is applied prospectively.

Save as the main changes described above, the Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the
Directors are not yet in a position to quantity the effects
on the Group’s financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 103 to 212 have
been prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis Of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for the investment
properties and leasehold building which are measured
at fair value. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of revised/amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases. The
results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of the
disposal, as appropriate.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4.1 A

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
the control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
4.2 Subsidiaries

4. FREGHBORMEE ()

4.2 Mg AT

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group is able to exercise
control, where the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of these entities so as
to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company’s profit or loss.

When the Group acquires a subsidiary where the
underlying assets are not integrated in forming a
business to generate revenues, the transaction is
accounted for as a purchase of net assets. The cost of
the acquisition is allocated to the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired based on their relative fair values at
the date of acquisition and no goodwill is recognised.

4.3 Jointly-controlled entity

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity
require the unanimous consent of the venturers.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
4.3 Jointly-controlled entity (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

e [e] 5l 7 (A

In the consolidated financial statements, jointly-
controlled entity is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly-
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group’s share of the
jointly-controlled entity’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in jointly-
controlled entity is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
jointly-controlled entity’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). The profit or loss for the period includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the jointly-controlled entity for the year, including any
impairment loss on the investment in jointly-controlled
entity recognised for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity. Where unrealised losses on assets sales
between the Group and its jointly controlled entity
are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Where the jointly-controlled entity uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform
the jointly-controlled entity’s accounting policies to
those of the Group when the jointly-controlled entity’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying
the equity method.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Jointly-controlled entity (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in jointly-controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly-
controlled entity, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly-
controlled entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the jointly-controlled entity is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly-
controlled entity.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its jointly-controlled entity. At each reporting date,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in jointly-controlled
entity is impaired. If such indications are identified,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
being the difference between the recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
of the jointly-controlled entity and its carrying amount.
In determining the value in use of the investment, the
Group estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the jointly-controlled entity, including cash flows
arising from the operations of the jointly-controlled
entity and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of jointly controlled entity
is set out in note 4.3.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree over the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Where the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of
the fair value of consideration paid and the amount
recognised for any non-controlling interests, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss on the
acquisition date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Impairment losses for goodwill recognised in an interim
period are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or cash-
generating unit, any attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the calculation of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes), but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purpose.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including
transaction cost, on initial recognition. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit
or loss.
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4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4.4

4.5
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is recognised in profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The leasehold buildings, held for own use, are stated
at revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period.

Any increase arising on revaluation is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under asset revaluation reserve, unless the
carrying amount of that asset has previously suffered a
decrease in revaluation. To the extent that any decrease
has previously been recognised in profit or loss, a
revaluation increase is credited to profit or loss with
the remaining part of the increase dealt with in other
comprehensive income. A decrease in net carrying
amount of leasehold buildings arising on revaluation
is recognised in other comprehensive income to the
extent of the revaluation surplus in the asset revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining
decrease is recognised in profit or loss.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost/revalued
amount of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease period

Leasehold buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 6% - 15%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as
the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss. Any relevant revaluation surplus remaining in
equity is transferred to retained profits on the disposal
of leasehold building.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets, representing urban infrastructure
development rights, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is
capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Amortisation is charged to the profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful lives of 20 years for
the intangible assets. Intangible assets are amortised
from the date the asset is available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets with finite lives are tested
for impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.

Properties held for development

Properties held for development representing operating
lease prepayment on leasehold land and any directly
attributable expenditure, with the intention for holding
for long-term purposes or no decision has yet been
made on their future use are included in the statement
of financial position as non-current assets. Since the
fair value of properties held for development cannot be
reliably determined, these investment properties are
measured at cost, less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The amortisation policy for operating
lease prepayment is disclosed in note 4.10 to the
financial statements.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Impairment of other non-financial assets

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4.9 HoAls kB AR

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of properties held for development
to determine whether there is any indication that they
have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

e |nvestments in subsidiaries and a jointly-controlled
entity;

e  Property, plant and equipment; and

e Properties held for development.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under the Group’s
accounting policy, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease according to that
policy.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

4.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor under operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee under operating lease

The total rentals payable under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

4.11 Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4,11 8% T H (4])
B (4

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated to as available-for-sale
or are not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which
are recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the spot
rate at the reporting date. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that result
from a change in amortised cost of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

® a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

e it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

* significant changes in technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

® a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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B WA M

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4,11 8% T H (4])
(ii) B G A Z WA (4

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the
loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

(iv) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(v)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and borrowings are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (note 4.15).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(vi) Equity instruments

Ordinary shares issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(vii)Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of a guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised as investment in
subsidiaries on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

411 M E T H(4)

(vii)Financial guarantee contract (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantee issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount.

(viii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. When an available-for-sale financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.12 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Urban infrastructure underground pipelines

Cost comprises direct materials computed using the
weighted average method and where applicable, direct
labour and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises the acquisition cost of land, development
expenditure, other direct expenses and capitalised
borrowing costs (see note 4.15).

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises the acquisition cost
of the properties and directly attributable development
costs. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ®EEZFBUREBE(4)
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition

4. 13 AHERR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the sale and purchase agreements have been signed
and the related conditions, if any, have been fulfilled.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Revenue from sales of properties under development
is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties under development
have been transferred to the purchasers and the Group
retains neither continuing involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties under development. The transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership is evidenced by the passing
of possession of properties to the purchaser when the
properties’ hand-over confirmation is executed by the
Group and the purchaser. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are
included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.

Revenue from urban infrastructure projects, such as the
construction works for telecommunication pipelines,
is recognised when the construction works are fully
completed and sold to customers. Completion is
determined based on certification by independent third
party quantity surveyors.

Income from management services, property repairs
and maintenance services are recognised in the period
when the respective services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the effective interest rate.

4.14 Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Foreign currency (Continued)

4. ERGEHBORBER (8)

4.145M¥ (57)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
HK$ at the closing rate at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into the HK$ at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated into HK$ at the closing rates. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

4.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the assets
for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs
are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEGF BRI (%)
POLICIES (Continued)
4.16 Income taxes 4.16 38t

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Income taxes (Continued)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)

(b)

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@)

(b)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

4.17 Employee benefits

(i)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China, except
Hong Kong (the “PRC”) are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(iii) Share-based employee compensation

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based employee compensation (Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in employee share-
based equity reserve in equity. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based equity reserve will be transferred to
share premium. After vesting date, when the vested
share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based equity reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one of more future
uncertain events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

4.19 Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (Continued)
4.19 Related parties (Continued)

FREEHBORMEZE (A7)

4.19 B A+ (%)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

4.20 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major business lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Property assembly
business

. Properties assembly and
sales of properties

Property development : Development of residential
and commercial properties

Property leasing : Property rental including
signage rental and provision
of office facilities and
services

Building management
and other services

: Provision of building
management, property
repairs and maintenance
services

: Urban infrastructure
development

Urban infrastructure
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THERETESINEERIZALVE
ZEBRBRELBIE -

() BAALZFLAREBRREBH

(i) BAALZEBRREBHZFL R

(i) ZBALTHZBALZERBARERH
ZEBAN -

420 HI 2
REBMBEMATEE TSR NS
BRBECEDERERSEEAN A&
ERITESREZSERNARATAEESER
WD 2 BRI RFTZEEKBH 2
K - MRITESNI 2R EHERI S
TIRBAREE TS EEXBRET °

AEEERA T 2HAME

MEA B C MEAHRMEHRE
E
MEBR D BREEREEDE
MEHE C MEHERRESN
MERREHRBAE
R MRS
BFeEEk @ RHEETEE WXE
H Bk 75 HE1E R AR B IR
W AR COR T AR AR b R B




Soundwill Holdings Limited & 855 E AR A Al

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
4.20 Segment reporting (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires
different resources as well as operating approaches.

The reporting segment results exclude the gain/(loss)
on disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs, share of
results of jointly-controlled entity, provision for amount
due from jointly-controlled entity, net gain on fair value
adjustments on investment properties, gain on disposal
of investment properties, income taxes and unallocated
income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment, are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

The revenue of others segment represents the
management fee income received from a fellow
subsidiary.

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,
inventories, loans and receivables and operating cash
and mainly exclude available-for-sale financial assets,
interests in jointly controlled entity which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. Corporate
liabilities include provision for income tax, deferred tax
liabilities and corporate borrowings.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuers have based on market value existing use and
redevelopment basis which involves certain estimates,
including comparable market transactions, appropriate
capitalisation rates and reversionary income potential
and redevelopment potential. In determining the
redevelopment value of an investment property, the
management is of the opinion that it is probable that the
Group is able to acquire a few outstanding properties
to carry out the redevelopment plan. In relying on the
valuation, management has exercised their judgement
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions.

(ii) Net realisable value of properties under development
Management determines the net realisable value of
properties under development by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market valuation reports available from independent
qualified professional valuers. Such valuations are
made based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainties and might materially differ from the
actual result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market condition
existing at the reporting date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations at the reporting date to ensure inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(iv) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its customers
and prevailing market conditions. Management
reassesses the provision for impairment of trade
receivables at the reporting date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
taxes and the timing of payment of related taxes. There
could have transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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6. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 6.
Turnover of the Group is the revenue from its principal
activities. An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other
income is as follows:

BREBSIABEA
AARZEEBRRBETZER 2 Wan - K&
Bz SRR EMIASTT

2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T I
Turnover: wEE
Property assembly MEE B
— Sales of properties held for sale — B e EYEEE 99,800 483,280
Property development MEER
— Sales of properties under development —BEPYEYE 1,310,536 84,272
Property leasing WERE
- Rental and signage rental income — e RESNHEERA 295,856 238,023
- Office facilities and service income — AR RARBEWA - 365
Building management and other services EFEEREMRS
— Property repairs and maintenance —MERERRE
service income [i5 3 ON 10,999 9,599
- Building management service income —EFEEREKA 6,700 6,780
Urban infrastructure T AR A
- Turnover from urban infrastructure — TR RMEEETIR
construction works EEE 78,077 79,371
1,801,968 901,690
Other income: HAbKA -
Bank interest income RITF EUWA 6,546 1,210
Commission income i ON 1,164 7,164
Write-back of provision for loss in litigation* & ZA B 3 8 ## #8 []* - 5,348
Write-back of provision for obsolete @ ERTE S B B[O
inventories 2,873 1,344
Miscellaneous income HIB UL A 8,459 2,165
19,042 17,231
Total turnover and other income e X ) NN PNk 1,821,010 918,921
* In 2010, a PRC subsidiary of the Company had a litigation with its * R-T—TF  AARPEMERRELFESETH
former employees who instituted an action against the PRC subsidiary e ZEREREHHPBEMBARIRLEEREF - BAN

claiming approximately HK$5,032,000 for unpaid salary and bonus. On
28 September 2011, the People’s Court in Xihu District, Xian Province,
the PRC, ordered and approved the application from these former
employees to revoke the legal proceedings for the unpaid salary and
bonus. Therefore, the PRC subsidiary was no longer required to pay the
claim and full reversal of provision for loss in the litigation amounting to
HK$5,348,000 was made in 2011 accordingly.

He ML B R BEE5032,0007T c RZE——FH
AZ+NB  H#EAZEANREARERBASHAELS
FESRFREOEBRLHFERIELZEEREFTHE °
At - pEMBREBEBAXNE@EE - M2 KF
B BB 5,348,000 L E AR — T ——FRN 2 HEME -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The executive directors have identified the Group’s five
business lines as operating segments as further described
in note 4.20.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results.

7. SAHER

MTERC BRI A REEB Y EARBRELR -

AP 4. 203 — PR -

WEEB DR BEERRBE 2L DERERE

OIS EEE -

Building
Property assembly Property management and Urban
business development Property leasing other services infrastructure Others Total
VECED] VEE (] NERE BERRAKER B ERRE 2 ]
2012 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2012 2012 2011
Z8--F 3% -B--fF _5-F ZB-CF 8- k- Tt 3 Z3-ZF 3-F
HKS'000. HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$000
AHTn BT RTr BTn AT MR ERTn L Mt AR
Turnover BEN
External customers IREP 99800 483260 1,310536 84212 295856 238388 17699 163719 718077 7937 - - 1,801,968 901690
Infer-segments COLT - - 405808 154430 2043 178 4163 624 - - %9162 20216 478567 193104
Reporiable segment ~ T2#)EEEE
fumover 99800 483200 1716344 238702 32520 266212 210862 17,008 78077 79371 39162 20276 2280535 1094844
Reportable segment 2 HAHHA /
profit/(loss) (B 53176 12014 403566 (30,167 244989 197288 10673 6128 12315 17667 2802 3o T2 204115
Bankinterestincome— 47FIE UM a - 1% 1039 1706 R - - 35 181 2660 § 656 120
Write-back of provision - A B & B
for loss in tigation - - - - - - - - - 5,348 - - - 5348
Wiite-back of provison - B EREAR
for obsolete inventories - - - - - - - - 28 1344 - -8 13U
Provision forlegel cost ~ Z2EFAE - - (4200 - - - - - - - - - (4200 -
Provision forvecant~~ £HHERARE
land tax - - (8861) - - - - - - - - - (8861) .
Depreciation g (83) (362 (860 (57 @170 40 () B @8 g (850) (644 (5284 (479
Amortisaton of EREEEY
intangible assets - - - - - - - - (480) [n) - - (480) (47)
Amortisation of propertes X E#ZEH
held for development - - (L0g (1139 - - - - - - - - (L0g (1139
Provison for obsolete Bz 5B
nventories - - - - - - - - - (220) - - - (220)
Reportable segment ~ WRHAHEE
assets - 0506 254,178 2798800 14,688,609 11451945 8,507 7125 288528 147200 400,202 194724 17,872,199 14,655,810
Additons to non-curent  FAsEERS)
segment assefs AREE
(uring the year - 4 1492 75 7290 903691 12 - 657 33 966 2491 726047 907282
Reportable segment W 2HAHH
liabilities - (8403 (138422) (635300 (109.309) (103600)  (14401) (16766  (6B2M) (49838 (21,939 (8009 (042992) (840,936)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

7. SREF ()
AT 2 MAEEE RS A2 RERR BRER AL
REMEZHBRTZHRMT -

the financial statements as follows:

2012 2011
—EB——fF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T P T I

Reportable segment turnover AEWMOEEES 2,280,535 1,094,844
Elimination of intersegment turnover KA R (478,567) (198,154)
Turnover ] 1,801,968 901,690
Reportable segment profits A2 DI EF 727,631 204,115
Net gain on fair value adjustments on WEMENTFEAEZ

investment properties BEFE 2,692,310 2,032,888
Gain on disposal of an investment HE -G EYE 2 W

property 3,311 461
Unallocated income and expenses RAOBZWARS (36,839) (15,419)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZWE, (BE) 121,040 (2,685)
Finance costs BhE A AN (49,729) (35,100)
Provision for amount due from U H RIS B EE 2

jointly-controlled entity B (15,565) -
Share of results of a jointly-controlled entity — fE{E — K L [EIR 4| B oL 245 (3,118) (838)
Profit before income tax [ Bt 75 Bt i) ez A 3,439,041 2,183,422
Reportable segment assets AIEMOEEE 17,872,199 14,655,810
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity — R EE S| ERL RS 28,536 45,260
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ER A E 10 10
Group assets AN A E 17,900,745 14,701,080
Reportable segment liabilities AIEHoEAE 942,992 840,936
Borrowings BE 2,993,501 3,509,413
Provision for income tax FriSBifE 96,863 13,943
Deferred tax liabilities BEEIEEE 65,183 59,054
Group liabilities A4 H fE 4,098,539 4,423,346
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s turnover from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than available-for-sale financial assets)
are divided into the following geographical areas:

7. SABER ()
REBZIIREPEEERAIERBEE (A H#
HEMBEERIN) D MHIATHE

Non-current

Turnover from

external customers assets
SREFERAE FERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-—=F —FT——F =B-=F =—FT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT EETT BT BT T
Principal markets B
Hong Kong (domicile) H7 (5Effib) 1,625,488 738,047 13,499,085 11,270,640
PRC H 176,480 163,643 26,269 26,122
1,801,968 901,690 13,525,354 11,296,762

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods/services were delivered/
rendered. The geographical location of non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group did not
depend on any single customer under each of the segment.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, approximately
HK$459,280,000 or 51% of the Group’s turnover was
derived from a single customer for sale of properties in the
property assembly business segment. As at 31 December
2011, no trade receivable was due from such customer.

BPZABR Y ERNEHED MR 2 B
EoRBEEZHRNBHEREEZBIRM
fE o

RBE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RHILtEE K&
ESEBH BT EFEHE-—TFPABROHEBEN -
REBEE-_T——F+_A=+—HILEE &&
#)E #%459,280,000 T & ERE(E N B &
EREN51%) REMEAHEBF DB TRE—F
FieEmENRA - R E——F+=-A=+—
H @ ElEFWEL KR E S ERZE o
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMhE A
2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Interest charges on: NTEEZMEMT -
Bank loans RITE
— wholly repayable within five years — R AFNEHEER 54,466 38,953
- not wholly repayable within five years —BEARAFATBHEER 8,738 9,275
Other borrowings — wholly repayable within  ZBR R EREH(EE Y
five years HuEE 2,795 5,603
Total borrowing costs BIEERAR 65,999 53,831
Less: Interest capitalised in investment B IREMERERERYE
properties and properties under ZHBERE
development (notes 17 and 27) (FizE17R27) (16,270) (18,731)
49,729 35,100

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank loans,
including term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with agreed scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. For the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011, the interest on bank loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$62,482,000 and HK$44,814,000 respectively.

A EAITIIERIEEZ R ZE S B E B EER
HMROBER(PIERERERERERZEH
BRREREK BE_ET——FR_ZFT——F
TZA=+T—HIFE  2AREREERIZ
IRITE A B D R BB 62,482,000 7T & 7
44,814,0007T °
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9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

9. BRPT 1B A it A

BR TS 4 A& A1 2 R
(FtA)NIIBIA

2012

—E——F

HK$’000
BT

2011
—E——%
HK$’'000
BEET T

Amortisation of intangible assets* | E EHE 480 471
Amortisation of properties held for FRE R Y Y
development 1,019 1,135
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN BN & 3,496 2,901
Bad debts written off* 2 AR AR 193 251
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 17 & AR BH T 50,177 49,253
Cost of properties held for sale/properties  FHEWE HED Y
under development recognised AR AR
as expenses 779,231 515,948
Deposit for property acquisition YW EERT S MR
written off* 1,135 924
Depreciation of property, W BERRETE
plant and equipment 5,284 4,479
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMNASZ(REESHE
directors’ remuneration and defined N e B FRA AR ) (BFRE11)
contribution cost) (note 11)
- share option expenses —BEREER 8,304 8,931
— other employee benefit expenses —Hib g B@FIm 92,918 66,125
101,222 75,056
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BELREZ
plant and equipment* B8~ 3 128
Operating lease charges in respect of MAEYHELCEHRETH
office premises 3,996 3,058
Provision for impairment loss of trade B B WG TE R E B R
receivables* (note 28) (FfF3E28) 596 1,116
Provision for obsolete inventories* BA T E R = 220
Property, plant and equipment written off ME - R MR MR 364 58
Provision for legal cost* (note 40(b)) SEEE REE (H5E400)) 4,200 -
Provision for vacant land tax* T E BT 8,861 -
Gross rental income from investment KEYERS WAL
properties (281,386) (218,795)
Less: Outgoings o T 16,039 7,403
(265,347) (211,392)
Other rental income less outgoings H ¥z S W AR
from other properties T = (230)
(265,347) (211,622)
included in other operating expenses ERFEEEMEEERR
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10.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 10. #HEEESHSHEZWE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) FEHME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were B ENESMEMT ¢
as follows:

Retirement  Equity-settled
benefits share based
Salaries and scheme payment
Fee allowances contributions expenses Total

HBRBEE L

£AEN  RGARRZ
iz FERER st RIS EH 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BT AR AR AR

Year ended 31 December 2012 BRE-Z 4

FIAZF R E
Executive directors wrHEs
Ms. Foo Kam Chu, Grace Besat 50 4,720 14 821 5,605
Ms. Chan Wai Ling Xy 50 6,233 14 2,987 9,284
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny BAREE 50 3,015 14 448 3,527
Mr. Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson ~ 2|£B1% % 50 1,426 14 179 1,669
Independent non-executive BukanES
directors

Mr. Chan Kai Nang e 110 - - - 110
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRREE 90 - - - 90
Mr. Ng Chi Keung REREE 90 - - - 90

490 15,394 56 4,435 20,375
Year ended 31 December 2011 KZE_ZF——4

FIZAEF R
Executive directors UrEE
Ms. Foo Kam Chu, Grace Behut - 3,960 12 957 4929
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZHT - 6,061 12 3,207 9,280
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny BAREE - 2,320 12 406 2,738
Mr. Tse Wai Hang* ol iy - 1,791 11 75 1,877
Mr. Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson® ~ 2|& 8% £ - 11 - 13 2
Non-executive directors FafES
Mr. Liang Yanfeng? PEBEL - - - - -
Mr. Meng Qinghui® RERRE - - - - -
Independent non-executive B JFHGTER
directors

Mr. Chan Kai Nang e 100 - - - 100
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong* BRIERE 19 - - - 19
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRREE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Ng Chi Keung®** RERTE 43 - - - 43

242 14,143 47 4,658 19,090

T——F+-A—BFT
—F+Z A+ NBEET
T——FMAZ+AEHT
——&—AtAET
T——E=A+\BEZE

resigned on 1 December 2011
appointed on 29 December 2011 o S
# resigned on 26 April 2011

#  resigned on 7 January 2011
###  appointed on 18 March 2011

x
¥

IR

Y O AF o o

=
¥
S
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10.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

10. 3 3 M #0484 (A)

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year (2011: Nil).

The value of share options granted to directors is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policy
for share-based compensation set out in note 4.17(iii).

The details of these benefits in kind

(a) SIS (H)
FARBETALHCESARUEREEFRE
BeTaFM( = —F &) -

BEYEEZBREEETREMEEA 7T
BARBEARBARD BERZNRZ K
Rt 2 - RFEMN a2 FB(BEEIER

including the R BB IOEBE ) B TES7 R -

principal terms and number of options granted are

disclosed in note 37.

Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three (2011:
four) directors of the Company, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid to the remaining two (2011: one)
individual(s) during the year are as follows:

EXOAC ST P NE R

REE  AEELUREHEATBEARA
=R(ZE——F ORB)EF - FEZMH
ERBHRER 2D - FREBKRE(ZF
——F —FB)ALTZHENT :

2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000
BET T
Basic salaries and other benefits AR KHEMET 4,130 2,016
Pension costs — defined IRIRE AR — e R RET S
contribution plan 28 12
Equity-settled share based payment VAR #E 45 B LARR D B B
(B 3,510 3,207
7,668 5,235

The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: one)

individuals fell within the following bands:

HBME(ZE——F: —2)ALzMEn
R

Number of individuals
AE

2012

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 - HK$6,000,000

—E-—F

7%#1,500,00170 —%%2,000,0007T - -
7%#2,000,00170 —%#%2,500,0007T 1 -
##2,500,00170 —%%3,000,0007T - -
783,000,001 7T — 7%3,500,0007T - -
783,500,001 7T — 7%4,000,0007T - -
7&#4,000,001 7T —7%4,500,0007C - -
#%4,500,0017 —%%5,000,0007T - -
7&%5,000,001 7T — 7%5,500,0007C - 1
15,500,001 70— %%6,000,0007T 1 -
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10.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 10. B ERESHASE M4 (4)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) FHALE R AL ()
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors BE-_ET——Fk-_FE—F+=-A=+—
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement HIEMEFE  AEEGREMESSK ALK
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EHATEAN A AEE - (ERERFEEN
loss of office and no director waived or agreed to waive AREE R MARERE 2 He B
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31 HmE BEMEEEHNE IR EN R TR
December 2012 and 2011. & o

11.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 11.EEBHABEYX(AEEEMNS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Salaries and wages (including directors’ HekIB(BIEESHE)
remuneration) 83,823 60,751
Equity-settled share based payment AR E AR D BER 2
(NEN 8,304 8,931
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iR {K% K7 — E 2B 2 EH 2 3,734 3,099
Staff welfare ETEF 5,361 2,275
101,222 75,056
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. B b X
2012 2011
—2—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEET T
Hong Kong profits tax BB
Tax for the year (note (a)) REZHIE (@) 110,226 47,546
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETRE 270 374
110,496 47,920
PRC income tax FEIFTIS
Tax for the year (note (b)) ARFERIE (M EE(D)) 2,828 8,318
Deferred tax (note 34) EIEFLTE (P5E34)
Current year REE 4,461 8,134

117,785 64,372
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profit for the year.

(b) The Group’s certain subsidiaries established and
operating in the PRC are exempted from enterprise
income tax for the first two profitable years of
operations, and thereafter, are eligible for a 50% relief
from enterprise income tax for the following three years
(“Tax Holiday”). Remaining subsidiaries operating in the
PRC are subject to PRC enterprise income tax rate of

25%.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

12. P 15 85 B 32 (48)
MIEE -

(a) BBFEH IR AREE AT 2 RS A%
RE16.5%(ZF——F : 16.5% )71 8 -

(o) AEBETBEAMRIREEZETHER
REEMERENFERERRANCERS
o MER=F(RHM])AETRE0%2
EEMGH - ARETPREAMEEZMBLR
AIR25% 2 B R G B (b PriS T -

B REhafRa @R EAE 2 HRD
™

2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T P T I
Profit before income tax 53 Jot 45 52 i ¥ 3,439,041 2,183,422
Tax at the applicable tax rates BEBHMEFTHE 2 FIE 565,797 362,161
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TEMRBR KT E 16,849 97,931
Tax effect of non-taxable income HARB WA Z R E (477,109) (398,603)
Tax effect of temporary differences not KRIERE =287
recognised Mg 2 (4,189) (4,045)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REABMBEERZ R E 17,821 7,365
Utilisation of previously unrecognised EABERER RIBESE
tax losses (1,654) (786)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 270 349
Income tax expense Jir 5 B B 32 117,785 64,372

13.PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$3,330,143,000 (2011:
HK$2,111,219,000), a loss of HK$6,391,000 (2011:
HK$7,156,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

13. A2 wlBiEA N HE A i

£ AEBH3,330,143,0007C( — T ——4F : B
2,111,219,00070) Z A A R B A EBIFER A
FEdh - AB8ENE,391,000 T 2 BE(ZT——
F 1 B#57,156,00070) B R AR Al Z A IS HRE R
IR o
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14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) 14, Hfth 2 U A (4)
The amount of tax relating to each component of other ERHEME2EBRARIES 2 HIBSEMY T
comprehensive income can be summarised as follows:

2012 2011
—B-=F e

Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax

BB BE  BEE  BEE #E  BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  RMTR  BMTR  BETR BRTR 8ETR

Exchange gain on translation & §h £ 58 B %
of financial statements of ~ ZE X I

foreign operations 11,681 - 11,681 9,028 - 9,028
Surplus on revaluation of ~ EEFEEEH -
leasehold building, netof BB ELFIE
deferred tax GEILED
(notes 18 and 34) 8,932 (1,474) 7,458 2,482 (409) 2,073
Other comprehensive oAb 2T A
income 20,613 (1,474) 19,139 11,510 (409) 11,101
15.DIVIDENDS 15. i B
(a) Dividend attributable to the year (a) AEPEZJBEE
2012 2011
—g2--F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT AT
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BRRER S FRE0.207T
(2011: HK$0.13) per share (ZZ——%F : B%0137T) 56,153 35,743
Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2011: HK$0.13) per share EER_T-=F=AT-HEREMAN_ZF
for the year to shareholders whose names appear on —=FRA=-+=ZA(Z&HEA8]) 25K
the register of members on 22 May 2013 (the “Record REM 2 REIRAARFEREIR S FREE
Date”) was proposed by the Directors on 12 March 0.207c(=F——% : BH¥0.13T) °
2013.
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has RBEBBREREZ CARBRELERARE R

not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date. HERAAE -
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15.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the previous

financial year, of HK$0.13
(2011: HK$0.10) per share

15. 8 (%)
(b) MR B HAR 2 IR, > AR O R L o I % A

2012 2011
—E-—_—F

—E——%F
HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BETT

BAEMRFESRAER0.13T
—T——%F : F¥0.107T)
ZARERR B

35,887 25,092

16.EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the following data:

Earnings
Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

16. 5 B A
FREA R R RS TR E

2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
i 1
ARRHEE NG

3,330,143 2,111,219

Number of shares
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of

Bt L H
SAEEBRENEMNERLZ
Epalill: R ok

basic earnings per share 278,020,965 262,291,149
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares  (EE IR S & v7 B T iE

in respect of employee share options ARz 1,587,664 1,551,689
Weighted average number of AESREERFFERA

ordinary shares for the purpose of TR NRE

diluted earnings per share 279,608,629 263,842,838
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. & WE
Changes to the carrying amount presented in the RAEMBIKARAZEmEZS M T
consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:

Group A 4R
2012 2011
—E--F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Carrying amount at 1 January KR—HA—HZEmE 11,038,428 10,061,908
Additions R 715,047 902,467
Disposal HE (2,180) (2,660)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EEE¥E - HE L&E
(note 18) (PfzE18) - (98,000)
Transfer to properties held for sale EEEGEEME(HE26)
(note 26) (6,090) (495,660)
Transfer to properties under EEEERPYE(NE27)
development (note 27) (1,093,925) (1,370,000)
Transfer from properties under SR AERPMENE27)
development (note 27) 14,505 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) HEME AR (MEE43) (95,567) -
Purchase of net assets (note 44) BEFEE(KT44) 4,802 -
Net gain on fair value adjustments N EFE 2 IGEFRE 2,692,310 2,032,888
Interest capitalised in investment REEREMEER(LZFE
properties under construction (note 8) (PfF5E8) 7,885 7,485
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt -A=1+—B2EAE 13,275,215 11,038,428
For the year ended 31 December 2012, a subsidiary of HE—Z——4%+-_A=+—HIEE  KAF
the Company disposed of its investment property with — XM B AR AREHB5,500,000(ZFE——
carrying amount of HK$2,180,000 (2011: HK$2,660,000) 4E S HE3,130,0007T ) & H — E BE [ (55
at a consideration of HK$5,500,000 (2011: HK$3,130,000), 2,180,0007C( =& ——4F : J##2 660,0007T) 2
resulting in a gain of HK$3,311,000 (2011: HK$461,000) EYE B NEREERGREYE  FE
after taking into account of selling and directly attributable 7 W A 3,311,000 (22— —4F : B
expenses. 461,0007T) °
The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 REFZIGEMERB I EXLERGEMEE
December 2012 by an independent, professionally qualified RN _E——F+-A=+—HETHEE#E
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, on the following basis: T(HE
e Certain investment properties under construction o ETFHRERDITEWE S BEMTSHE S
were revalued on re-development basis by adopting REREESHGE - MR ENKLE %
the residual site method. The residual site method BERREEREREBEEEHNBREITREARK A
is determined by deducting the estimated total cost (BIEEERAK  BHEEBH -  BERAE - 18
of the development including costs of construction, BRAR—BRERERAB R EFEL Y
professional fee, finance cost, associated costs and an BiEVET &

allowance for developer’s risk and profit from the gross
development value; and
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

e The remaining investment properties are revalued based
on the market value on an existing use basis which
involves certain estimates, including comparable market
transactions, where appropriate capitalisation rates and
reversionary income potential.

In relying on these valuations, the management has
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are reflective of the current
market conditions.

During the year, as opined by the Directors, the Group’s
certain investment properties were transferred to properties
under development (note 27) due to change in use, as
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale. The fair value of the investment properties at the
date of change in use represented the deemed cost of
properties under development for subsequent accounting
in accordance with HKAS 2 “Inventories”, which were
determined as the base on the highest and best use of
the property sites assuming it is physically possible, legally
permissible and financially feasible.

The Group’s interests in investment properties are situated
in Hong Kong and their carrying amounts are analysed as

17. B &Y (5)
o HHBKAMERREMEZMEEMS  EF
FREEALERTERS BEANLILX
VAT B W s B 2 B T fhET o

KBS HER - ERECEREAE - WM
RN 2 EMEETERRRI TR ©

FRREFZER  AREETEREWEER
FumEmERERRPDENZE27) - KEY
ENEUMEERAZANERBEEEGIERSE
25 [ FEIRRARERBMEZRA - WIIRE
BEMEEL L ORRHFARPBATZERT
ZREVERABRETE -

REBMZLEMERESUAES  MEKAESD
i N

follows:
2012 2011
—B——fF —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T I
Held on leases over 50 years FHEA50F A 13,134,030 10,877,918
Held on leases from 10 to 50 years FHERA10E 504 141,185 160,510
13,275,215 11,038,428

As at 31 December 2012, certain investment
properties of the Group with total carrying amount of
HK$11,859,798,000 (2011: HK$10,314,650,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank loans of HK$2,686,368,000
(2011: HK$2,953,454,000) (note 33).

All of the Group’s investment properties for earning rental
income or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

RZTE——F+-A=+—H A£EEHEEE
H{EABH11,859,798,000T( =T ——4F : &
#10,314,650,0007T ) 2 & T & Yy 3 H 1 DA &
A 88 2,686,368,0007 (— T ——4F : B
2,958,454,0007T) 2 & TiR1TE R (MI7E33) °

AEEMERSRBREERARIEEREERE 2
REMEEARNFEENGE  AOBUAREA
BEWE -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3k ~ W5 Bk i
Group A 4R
Fumiture,
Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land building  improvements equipment vehicles
? g
HELH HERT UES3 % 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BB BB
At 1 January 2011 [ S i
Cost/Valuation BA/fhE 11,687 40,400 13,163 7,080 4,791 77,121
Accumulated depreciation ~ 25HTE (192) - (10,764) (4,092) (1,982) (17,030)
Net carrying amount BEFE 11,495 40,400 2,399 2,988 2,809 60,091

Analysis of cost/valuation WA /fiffi 74

At cost A 11,687 - 13,163 7,080 4,791 36,721
At professional valuation REEEE - 40,400 - - - 40,400
11,687 40,400 13,163 7,080 4,791 77,121

Year ended RE-Z—F

31 December 2011 TR R
Opening net carrying amount  FAIEEFE 11,495 40,400 2,399 2,988 2,809 60,091
Additions R - - 1,245 2,856 408 4,504
Surplus on revaluation Eff R - 2,482 - - - 2,482
Transfer from investment ~ EEERENER

properties (note 17) (Br17) 53,100 44900 - - - 98,000
Disposals e - - - 2 (496) (498)
Write-off W - - (48) (10) - (58)
Depreciation & (39) (1182) (1572) (1,192) (494) (4,479)
Exchange realignment AR - - 14 12 50 76

Closing net carrying amount ~ FEREFE 64,556 86,600 2,038 4,652 2,212 160,118
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Group (Continued)

REE (A

18. W13 ~ W M Al (48)

Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land building improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENE  BR - %E
RELH HEEF %6 R fe a2 an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR BB BETT BETT
At 1 January 2012 REF-ZHE—-H—H
Cost/Valuation BA/fhiE 64,787 86,600 13,890 9,880 4,721 179,884
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (231) - (11,852) (5,228) (2,455) (19,766)
Net carrying amount REEE 64,556 86,600 2,038 4,652 2,272 160,118
Analysis of cost/valuation WA/ th A
At cost B 64,787 - 13,890 9,880 4,727 93,284
At professional valuation BEEhE - 86,600 - - = 86,600
64,787 86,600 13,890 9,880 4,727 179,884
Year ended BEZZ-2F
31 December 2012 FZR=t— Bk EE
Opening net carrying amount ~ EAIEEFE 64,556 86,600 2,038 4,652 2,212 160,118
Additions R - - 2,083 1,745 1,994 5,822
Surplus on revaluation BhRH% - 8,932 - - - 8,932
Disposals e - - - @ - @
Write-off ik - - (280) (84) - (364)
Depreciation g (77) (1,732) (1,483) (1,437) (555) (5,284)
Exchange realignment EREE - - 14 29 49 92
Closing net carrying amount ~ FRREF(E 64,479 93,800 2,372 4,901 3,760 169,312
At 31 December 2012 REF—CA
+ZA=Z+—R
Cost/Valuation A/ fhiE 64,787 93,800 14,373 11,408 6,826 191,194
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (308) - (12,001) (6,507) (3,066) (21,882)
Net carrying amount FHFE 64,479 93,800 2,372 4,901 3,760 169,312
Analysis of cost/valuation WA/
At cost BRKA 64,787 - 14,378 11,408 6,826 97,394
At professional valuation REEME - 93,800 - - - 93,800
64,787 93,800 14,373 11,408 6,826 191,194
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s leasehold building held
on leases over 50 years in Hong Kong is stated at valuation
of HK$93,800,000 (2011: HK$86,600,000). The Group’s
leasehold building was valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
on an open market value basis by reference to the price
information of comparable properties. A revaluation surplus
of approximately HK$8,932,000 (2011: HK$2,482,000) had
been credited to asset revaluation reserve.

As at 31 December 2012, leasehold building of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$93,800,000 (2011:
HK$86,600,000) was pledged to secure certain bank loans
of the Group (note 33).

Had the leasehold building been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation, its carrying amount
at 31 December 2012 would have been approximately
HK$10,869,000 (2011: HK$11,189,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

18. Y13 ~ W) Be skl (48)

AEE(H)

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—8 AEERESH
EHIS0F A £ 2 T EFUAMEE 193,800,000
TT(ZZT——4 : B186,600,0007T) 7|8k A&
ErHERFHBERT2ZNALBYEZE
BEARHZ AT EEEMNMELGE - EMAHBE
758,932,000 (= Z —— 4 : B #2,482,000
B ABEERGRHE -

R-T——F+-A=+—8 AEHEEFE
{8 478 193,800,000 T (=T — —4F : H#&
86,600,0007T) 2 HERFUBSAEE 2 AT
RITE R (FIEESS) o

HWHEBFUBRLKARRFTEARK  HE
ER-_FE-——F+T-_A=+-BBOREH
10,869,000 7T (= F — — % : /&% 11,189,000
7T °

163




164

Soundwill Holdings Limited & 855 E AR A Al

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
Group

19. FF 8
A4k

2012 2011
=F-—=F —F—— 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
Year ended 31 December BE+THA=1+—HIL4FEE
Opening net carrying amount FYEEFE 46,672 47,278
Additions R 376 310
Amortisation B (1,019) (1,135)
Exchange realignment M 5 AR 299 219
Closing net carrying amount FREREFRE 46,328 46,672
As at 31 December wr_A=+—H
Cost DN 56,630 55,920
Accumulated amortisation R (10,302) (9,248)
Net carrying amount BREFE 46,328 46,672
Analysis of lease terms: FLEE 43 #r
- In Hong Kong held on leases between —REEHEHR10E50F
10 to 50 years 30,187 30,468
—In the PRC held on leases between — P EHAER/10E505F
10 to 50 years 16,141 16,204
Net carrying amount REFE 46,328 46,672

Properties held for development represents certain
agricultural lands (the “Lands”) situated in The New
Territories. The Directors are of the opinion that the fair
value of the Lands cannot be reliably estimated unless
the Group successfully assembles and consolidates the
titles of the Lands, obtains the approval from the related
government authorities and pays the land premium for
further development. As such, the Group measures the
Lands using the cost model. There was no disposal of the
Lands during the year.

BIEERMERUNMAZETRER (L
)  BEERER  BRIEREERINEALBAE
7 BSHERTEERX N BERBE T8
NV ETHASEMETE - BEit - REBRKAR
Xt - REETENFELE LM -
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20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. P& 2w B 4
Company AN
2012 2011
—EB——fF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRR - IREA 2,318,856 2,318,856
Less: Provision for impairment loss B REEEEE (1,773,856) (1,773,856)
545,000 545,000
Amount due from a subsidiary A ENGIE 1,751,285 1,738,931
Less: Provision for impairment loss B REET B RS (1,471,575) (1,471,575)
279,710 267,356
Less: Amount due from a subsidiary included J& : 5t AR ENE E 2~ fE UK B
under current assets NE)FRIE (279,710) (267,356)
Amount included under non-current assets (T AIERFEET &5 545,000 545,000
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, of the amount due RZE—ZFRZFT——F+ZA=+—
from a subsidiary, a balance of HK$279,710,000 (2011: H BR—FMEBARIRBZEHKSBELE
HK$267,356,000) is unsecured, interest free and repayable 279,710,0007t (= ZT ——4 : B #267,356,000
on demand. The remaining balance is unsecured, interest TL) BEEIR - RERAREREE - HRENE
free and not repayable within the next twelve months from R 2B RBEREERET —EANEE -
the reporting date.
Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the FEWEARFIEEHN I REM 47 -

21.

financial statements.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY  21.— %3t 6] 5 i B #8 i i

Group ARG
2012 2011
. i —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BRI
Unlisted share, at cost JEETRG « REAR 1 1
Share of post-acquisition results FERIE B 2 5E (5,159) (2,041)
(5,158) (2,040)
Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity — fEI — 2% H[F12 4 F 52 718 49,259 47,300
Less: Provision for impairment (note 40(b)) & : BB #5(MF 5T 40(b)) (15,565) -
28,536 45,260
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21.INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

(Continued)
Group (Continued)

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity is
interest free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. No repayment will be demanded within twelve

unsecured,

ZIK%@(E)
JEW — R R E
?ﬁ%liﬁf’xﬁﬁ R
EREE

months from the reporting date and the amount is classified

as non-current assets accordingly.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity at 31 December

2012 are as follows:

—ZHFFTZA=t—HH

Percentage of

Bl
Ownership
Place of interest
incorporation Issued and attributable Voting
Company name and operations paid-up capital to the Group Power
AEBERS
ARER EMRIREEHYE BRTHMERE BEEERS RERE
Golden Choice  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 50% 50% 50%
Enterprises HK$1 each
Limited
BYEEBERAR BE REREEARIT 50% 50% 50%
The following is a condensed summary of financial AT RAEEHL %IJE“:‘“‘%%
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entity, extracted EEEad= *%@%VZEIE ]

from its unaudited management account:

21, — 536 [l 52 ) B L AE 25 (46)

SRIRTYEER - 2R R
TEEEERRT —_EAR
WZEBEDBRIFRDEE -

TR

Principal
activities

Property
development

NEER

MBERNRE - T

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Share of assets and liabilities A% S [ A 2 B £ 0
attributable to the Group
Current assets mEVEE 21,572 21,609
Current liabilities mEafE (26,731) (23,650)
Net liabilities FEE (5,159) (2,041)
Share of results attributable A 4 [ E )Y 25 45
to the Group
Revenue e = -
Administrative expenses 1THE R (3,118) (838)
Loss for the year REFFEIE (8,118) (838)
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22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Group

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

22, ALk B

AL

2012 2011

. —F——5F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Unlisted investments, at cost JFELTIRE - AR 6,660 6,660

Less: Provision for impairment loss B BB IR (6,650) (6,650)
Available-for-sale financial assets ERBEERE N2 A HEE

under non-current assets S EE 10 10

Unlisted investments represent 35% of the issued ordinary
share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The unlisted investments are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets because in the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has no significant influence over the financial and
operating decisions of the investee.

The unlisted investment with a carrying amount of
HK$10,000 (2011: HK$10,000) is measured at cost less
impairment losses as it does not have quoted market prices
in active market. The Group plans to hold the investment
continuously.

EEMBREE MR EBEIMRILZIELTAR
235% 0 BT EIMARARA o

MREERR  AEEHTIRE QR ZF B RE
ERRUEBAZES Al - ZBFLTRE
DHERAIHHENBEE -

BREEABK10,000 (2T ——F : B
10,0007t ) 2 3F L 4% & i 70 30 8 0F B 1 35 1
B BMEDERARBREBENIE - REETE
BESHEDIELTRE -
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B 5 R Mt it
23.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23, BB
Group A SR 9
Urban infrastructure development rights 20§ 177 5 1 5t ] 8
2012 2011
=F-—=F —F—— 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
At 1 January B—H—H
Cost AR 18,617 18,283
Accumulated amortisation and Rt OREEE
impairment loss (12,333) (11,652)
Net carrying amount IREFE 6,284 6,631
Year ended 31 December BE+A=Z1+—HIL4FEE
Opening net carrying amount FYRREFE 6,284 6,631
Amortisation charge (note 9) B GH S (BT E9) (480) (471)
Exchange realignment M H PR 159 124
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 5,963 6,284
At 31 December w+=H=+—H
Cost B A% 19,087 18,617
Accumulated amortisation and REHEEOREER
impairment loss (13,124) (12,333)

Net carrying amount IREFE 5,963 6,284
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24. GOODWILL 24, 2
Group A 4R
2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT TT
Gross amount AR N
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+ZA=+—H 4,168 4,168
Accumulated impairment loss E R R
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+ZA=+—H 4,168 4,168
Net carrying amount JUIIREIR )
Gross amount BmEE 4,168 4,168
Accumulated impairment loss 2ETREEBE (4,168) (4,168)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - -
25.INVENTORIES 25. HK
Group A SR 9
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T IT
Raw materials R4 1,193 1,002
Work in progress ERS 13,479 13,634
Finished goods RIRK T 43,095 46,817
57,767 61,453
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B BEFEERE (15,419) (18,431)
42,348 43,022

A provision of HK$2,873,000 (2011: HK$1,344,000) made
in prior years against the carrying value of finished goods
have been reversed. This reversal arose due to these

finished goods were sold during the year.

R EFERENK R 2 EEEELB%2873,000
TT(—F——F : B¥1,344,0007T ) 2 5 & #
[0 o AR IHRZEEKNRREAFEEL -
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26.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

27.

26. fr i EYE

Group 24 H
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZEEE 38,400 -
Transfer from investment properties HE R EE
(note 17) (FFsE17) 6,090 495,660
Disposals e (44,490) (457,260)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—RZEAE - 38,400
During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group disposed FAN - AEEBETHBARANBRESE
of their properties held for sale with carrying amounts 99,800,000 T (=& —— 4 : %% 483,280,000
of HK$44,490,000 (2011: HK$457,260,000) at a total J0) B ERREE % 44,490,00070( =2 ——F :
consideration of HK$99,800,000 (2011: HK$483,280,000), ¥ 457,260,0007T) 2 ¥ EARBEEREAER
resulting in a net profit of HK$53,976,000 (2011: FE 1R A 3 18 P 4 2 7% A /5 78 53,976,000 7T
HK$19,319,000) after taking into account of selling and (ZZ=——% : #%19,319,0007T) °
directly attributable expenses.
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 27. # bWk
Group AR
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 2,435,382 775,675
Additions BR 312,220 332,706
Disposals e (734,741) (58,688)
Transfer from investment properties B RIREYE (ME17)
(note 17) 1,093,925 1,370,000
Transfer to investment properties EEBEEIEME (WFE17)
(note 17) (14,505) -
Interest capitalised in properties under RERMEERN 2 F &
construction (note 8) (FyzE8) 8,385 11,246
Exchange realignment M 5 A 11,480 4,443
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ZA=+—HBZKEA 3,112,146 2,435,382

Properties under development
stated at cost

BRAPYELE T HFATIE -
24BN 3,112,146 2,435,382
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B 5 R Wt
27.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 27, % J& v ¥ % (44)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s properties MN-ZE——F+-A=+—H0 XNEEKFEH
under development with aggregate carrying amount of B{E AEE1,520,845,000L( —FE——4F : &
HK$1,520,845,000 (2011: HK$1,982,591,000) were #1,082,591,0007T ) 7 BB P ¥ £ DUEB B
pledged to secure certain bank loans of HK$307,132,000 307,182,0007T( =& ——4 : ##¥555,959,000
(2011: HK$555,959,000) (note 33). T2 ETHRITER(MIFESS) »
As at 31 December 2012, the properties under development R-ZE—-—F+-_A=+—8 §HBK
of approximately HK$496,881,000 (2011: HK$484,724,000) 496,881,000 ( —Z = — —4F : B%484,724,000
are expected to be recovered within one year. J0) 2 BEREABPYETEHRE N —FRgE -
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. © 5 B fth E WLk IH
Group NEH
2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables =) e 129,892 101,118
Less: Provision for impairment loss B BB IR (12,710) (11,883)
Trade receivables, net B S REWFIE - F5E 117,182 89,235
Other receivables, utility deposits and HibEWRE « ARREERE
prepayment RIERFRIE 73,478 33,093
Less: Provision for impairment loss B OREEIE = -
Other receivables, utility deposits and HihEWTE - AERBEES
prepayment, net MIEFFIE - FEE 73,478 33,093

190,660 122,328
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Group (Continued)

As at the reporting date, trade receivables included in trade
and other receivables were approximately HK$117,182,000
(2011: HK$89,235,000). The credit terms of the Group’s
trade receivables range from 30 to 90 days. At 31 December
2012, based on invoices dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables is as follows:

28. B 5 B Hfth HE Wk 0 (4)

AL (%)

RBEBH  HFTAESREMBEURGKIBEZESHE
W R IB 4 B 117,182,000 ( — B ——4 1 4
75 189,235,000t ) © NEEE 5 EWKRIA 2
EHNTFI0E0OK - RZE——F+_A=+—
H REZZEH  BIEUFEZRRI TN
T

2012 2011

—B——fF —FE——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEET T

0 - 30 days 0ZE 30K 102,910 68,746
31 - 90 days 31E290K 3,895 3,290
91 - 180 days 91£E180K 2,156 2,889
Over 180 days HBiE180K 8,221 14,310
Total trade receivables B REI G IER 117,182 89,235

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the allowance for
doubtful debts during the year is as follows:

BB ZREFIAZ MENBBRTDE - RIER
SEEMWEZERIRZ A RIEERE  EZER
T ORETEENESRUGRETME - FAR
FREEZEBHMT

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

At 1 January n—A—H 11,883 10,996
Less: Reversal of provision for A RIRBEEE

doubtful debts - (373)

Add: Provision for impairment loss (note 9) 1N : JF{EEEEME (M1EE9) 596 1,116

Exchange realignment ME W, F8 % 231 144

At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 12,710 11,883

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, included in the
allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables. The individually impaired receivables related
to invoices that were outstanding for more than one year
and the management assessed that none of these balances
are expected to be recoverable. Normally, other than those
property leasing rental receivables which are secured by
rental deposits, the Group does not obtain collateral from
other customers.

RZE—ZFR=T——F+ZA=+—H R
IR ERIEERE 5 B UWGRIE 2 RE o 8755k
FBEZRERFERZN —F2EEMEERET
HIEHZERRFEREKE 2 HHEREH - —
BmE - RUEEZRSRER 2 MERERKE
SN - NG E N A A E AR S R A &
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28.

29.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Group (Continued)
Trade receivables that are not impaired are as follows:

28.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

5 5 B L Ath JE Wk I ()
AL E ()
WHEREZ B S EEHRENT

2012 2011

. —F——5F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T P T I

Neither past due nor impaired SR HA & 30 A R (A 105,540 71,008

Less than 90 days past due BERD R0 H 2,506 3,874
Past due more than 90 days but BHZR0BELR1E

less than 1 year 5,918 13,784

Past due more than 1 year but BHAZ I FEDR2F
less than 2 years 3,218 574
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 117,182 89,235

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade and other
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one
year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
due to short maturity periods on their inception.

BANK DEPOSIT AT ESCROW ACCOUNT

This represents funds in the stakeholder account in
connection with pre-sales of properties under development
situated in Hong Kong.

29.

RIEH R 3 SORAE 2 B 5 MR IR B K 8 3 T
HEREFCHBZEPAR - CAMEX EREE
ZESRWRREZ R AREEE R IFEELH
ZEPHR - RiATRR  BEEMREHARE
EEHRWEBEAEY  MAFERDIRFET R
ol - BB AL S R E R E R

BEERA ANEMER -FRKEZESRE
Mo EMRIB A RIS Z BB e - A A
EREEETESAEE -

R EEE IR P Z SRAT 17K
BN EARERS T ARBEURNEE
BERNEZAS -
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30.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30. Bl R B &EED

Group A SR 9
2012 2011
—B——fF —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
Bank and cash balances IRITRIB 8% 309,095 252,719
Short-term bank deposits RARRITIF K 306,326 319,225
615,421 571,944

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on the
daily bank deposit rates.

The Group’s bank balances included restricted bank
deposits of approximately HK$2,209,000 (2011:
HK$8,088,000) which were restricted by the bankers for the
purpose of construction related payments.

Short-term bank deposits were made for the periods of 7
days to 3 months (2011: 1 month to 3 months) depending
on the immediate cash requirement of the Group, and
earned fixed-rate interest at respective short-term deposit
rates ranging from 0.02% to 1.05% (2011: 1.3% to 2.3%)
per annum.

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group
is HK$153,277,000 (2011: HK$119,907,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors consider that the fair value of the cash
and cash equivalents is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

RITRSRIEE B RITF RT3 R BREX
ME e

AEBNRITESRT  BREINEREIRZER
HERTTFE KK B 2,209,000 (ZFE——5F 1
8,088,0007T) °

RPBTERZERBAB7AZEIEA(ZE
——F EAREAR) KRIAEEZESLFX
ME @ WEEH 2 EHFEREFNEK0.02EZE.05
EB(ZZ——%F : 1.3EXE2.32)HNAE -

SRARKER S MREEFEMAFERRTEZHE
IRITHVIRTTAE R ADE ¥ 153,277,0007C (ZF——
F : B¥119,907,00070) 2 AR (T AR IR
THERR c ARBYIFFR BmABRZEE - RiIgF
B A 2 SME B IR DI M A TE - BIERNEER
BE - ARERELRBREEITINE R 2 RIT
AR H oM -

BEERA ANBREEREFBEMNRIFZE
HHERE  MEAFEEREAETEEANE
£
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31.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

31. 5 5 B L Ath HE 1 3% IR

B WA M

Group A 4R
2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Trade payables B S SRIE 97,165 65,209
Receipt in advance TEMFRIE 4,101 18,617
Rental deposits received BWEEES 101,774 86,483
Accrued expenses and other payables ENERNMEMEMNSRIE 253,635 142,118
Provision for legal cost EEREREE 4,200 -
460,875 312,427

As at the reporting date, trade payables included in trade
and other payables were approximately HK$97,165,000
(2011: HK$65,209,000). The Group was granted by its
suppliers with credit periods ranging from 30 to 60 days.

RBEBH  HFAESREMENRBEZESE
NERIBL BB 97,165,000 ( Z T ——4F : 4
75 #65,209,0007T)  AEBEBEHEBEEEE TN
TI0E60KRZEEH - IREBFEZEBH - EHFEN

FIAZ RERDTIT

Based on the invoices dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

2012 2011

—E——fF —ET——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT

0 — 30 days 0FE 30K 44,315 32,280
31 - 90 days 31E 90K 15,897 10,352
Over 90 days HEI0K 36,953 22,577
Total trade payables Z SN IAERE 97,165 65,209
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32.DEPOSIT RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
Group

32. THET &
A4k

2012 2011
—B——fF —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
Deposit receipt associated with sale of BREEFNEYEZ
properties held for sale BUET € - 28,200
Deposit receipt associated with BATEELA T2 2 RS
pre-sale of properties under WMEZEWRFTE
development situated at:
- Hong Kong — &5 406,458 409,272
- PRC — 75,659 91,037
482,117 528,509
33.BORROWINGS 33.f5 &
Group A M
2012 2011
. i —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Bank loans — secured IRITER— BRI 2,993,501 3,509,413
Carrying amount repayable based on the RIBER D ETETEE
scheduled repayment dates set out ERAHEEECRME
in the loan agreements:
Within one year —FR 1,237,430 1,813,562
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A HETBARF
two years 198,349 153,534
More than two years, but not exceeding MFEL BT BBRF
five years 1,274,222 1,189,517
More than five years RFE L 283,500 352,800
2,993,501 3,509,413
Carrying amount of bank loans due for —FRIBEEZRITER
repayment after one year which contain (BIBIREKEE KK
a repayment on demand clause (shown ZHEREEGIRREEE)
under current liabilities) 1,756,071 1,695,851
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33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Bank loans are secured by certain investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, and properties under
development of the Group as set out in notes 17, 18 and 27
respectively to the financial statements.

Following is the bank loan denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency to which they relate:

RMB-denominated bank loan

ARERITER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

33. M58 (#)

AL E ()

RITERTIAD BB B RMERME17 - 18]
TRZAKEETIREDE - WE - BB RREN
KB ERPMEFRER -

TN AR B AN s EREHEZRTTE

b7

2012 2011
—E—_F

~RMB000
ARBETTT

RMB’000
ARET T

2,000 20,000

The fair values of the borrowings as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 approximate to their carrying amounts.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 45.1(d) to the
financial statements.

Group
The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

RIB——FR_F——F+-_A=+—RH &
Bz AV EEAREERS -

BRAEEEEZERANEHBA 2 MENR K
B 53R M 5E45.1(d) °

ALEH

REHBEAKBEE ZBRANEMT

Bank loans SRAT B
- HK$-denominated loans —BEBER
— RMB-denominated loans - AREER

HIBOR+ HIBOR+

1% p.a. to 1% p.a. to
HIBOR+ HIBOR+
3.75% p.a. 2.85% p.a.
EEZi3 RIZE &

+F =1 E +FHE1E

£ z

EZFE RIZE 8
+FHEI.75E  +FHE2.85F
30% mark-up 15% mark-up
over the over the

base rate base rate
HER|%E EAER| &
EEHEAZ=ELT LEFEHZTH
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

34, RAERIEA

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as follows: X EEEEBIMT ¢
Group A SR 9
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T I
At 1 January Rn—H—H 59,054 50,373
Deferred taxation charged to: BB TIEE ZIRERIE
- Profit or loss (note 12) —1BxE(MFE12) 4,461 8,134
- Asset revaluation reserve (note 14) —BEEGEE(ME14) 1,474 409
Exchange realignment bE i AR 194 138
At 31 December wW+—-_A=+—H 65,183 59,054

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the current and prior

AT AREAMBURRNKRERZ T BREENIAE
BEARERAEZEEBEFE 2

years:
Fair value
gains on
Accelerated owner-
tax occupied
depreciation properties Total
ERERYE S
EHEHRE AP EEE R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—HF—H 38,480 11,893 50,373
Charge to profit or loss 8,134 - 8,134
Charge to other comprehensive 1% B E 42 WA
income - 409 409
Exchange realignment - 138 138
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F
1 January 2012 +—A=+—8xK
F—H—H 46,614 12,440 59,054
Charge to profit or loss s =] 4,461 - 4,461
Charge to other comprehensive 1 B8 E b2 EULA
income - 1,474 1,474
Exchange realignment - 194 194
At 31 December 2012 N—E——F+-_A=+—H 51,075 14,108 65,183
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34.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the amount of unrecognised
deferred tax assets mainly represented by tax effect of
temporary differences attributable to unrecognised tax
losses of HK$45,097,000 (2011: HK$28,930,000). The
deductible temporary differences have not been recognised
in the financial statements as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the tax loss or other
deductible temporary differences can be utilised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of the companies
in which the losses arose. All tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of the Group have no expiry dates
under the current tax legislation.

The Group has deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$2,006,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$1,692,000) in respect of the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries have not been recognised.
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect
of these differences because the Group is in a position
to control the dividend policies of its subsidiaries and it is
probable that such difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Company

No deferred tax has been provided in the financial
statements of the Company as there are no material
temporary differences.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

34, MR AL B YE £ 15 ()

AHE I (47)

MN-ZE——F+-F=+—8 KBERELTH
BEEZSCHIERANAERTAEBIBEE
45,097,00070( =2 ——4 : #128,930,0007T)
FTEAZBRIEEZEHREHEE - BREREFES
BEEBAQRBNRICEF - HEAEBBRE M
90 T B M 2 BB S B R 4 B PR DA 8 B ER B 0
o BT BRI REERTHRG R EE5E -
RIEIR BRG] - AEBEAAKRBEBERATN
TR E B R o

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—8 AEEEBE+HEH
MBARIRDIRAER 2 EEE R EEB5E 2 IRT
TR B E4)78H2,006,0007 (—F——14F : B
1,692,0007T) AR HEFR o B AN 58 [ Bt 545 ) H
MiE AR 2R BBERIA R BT R EEN A R
RATBE TS REE - I Z S EERERIEER
BEME -

AAT
MR ARB L |ERGREEE - R BN
WRIELIRETIRREA -
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35.SHARE CAPITAL

2012 2011
—B-—fF —T——F
Number Number
of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$’000
R E B BT D& B BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of SREEEK0.10T
HK$0.10 each 2 &Rk 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EET MR
At 1 January w—A—H 274,944,135 27,494 241,464,135 24,146
Exercise of share options 1TEB AR 5,820,000 582 14,480,000 1,448
Placing of shares (note) Bl & AR 10 (BT =E) - - 19,000,000 1,900
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 280,764,135 28,076 274,944,135 27,494

Note:

On 19 April 2011 and 1 June 2011, the Group completed placings

(the “Placings”) of 9,000,000 and 10,000,000 new shares (the
“Placing Shares”) of the Company to Ko Bee Limited at HK$12.00
and HK$12.20 per each Placing Share respectively. The proceeds
were used as the general working capital of the Group. Of the gross
proceeds of HK$230,000,000, amounts of HK$1,900,000 and
approximately HK$226,571,000, after deduction of issuing expenses
of approximately HK$1,529,000, were credited to share capital and
share premium accounts respectively.

RZT——FmNA+AAR-ZE——FXA—H &%
% 58 Ak AR & ([ B2 %5 1)9,000,0004% & 10,000,000 0% #7 48
ARG ([ABERM ) FKo Bee Limited » BLEESH B
BERA12.007T RAB12.207T © FTEHEBER
SEz—REEES - FTIFRIA LR 230,000,000
TUHR MR BT X A% 1,629,000 7T BB
1,900,0007T %226,571,0007T * 25 Bl 5+ A B A & f 45
I -
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36.RESERVES 36. fii ffi

Group AL
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Share premium (note (a)) B35 E (M 5E(a) 659,198 603,444
Asset revaluation reserve BESHHFE 42,353 34,895
Employee share-based equity reserve E TR IREF RS 8,902 10,681
Retained profits 1R ER & F) 12,706,146 9,432,300
Exchange reserve HaEE 43,877 32,362
Special reserve (note (b)) R R (M5 (0)) 1,848 1,848
Proposed final dividend (note 15(a)) AR B (MI3E15(a)) 56,153 35,743
13,518,477 10,151,273

Notes: B E

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received over
the par value of share issued.

(b) The special reserve of the Group initially represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company
in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
110 and 111 to the financial statements.

(@) BOEEEMUBRRESRESETROEREZEZE

(o) AKREBZHEHRESVNERBEARE-AALFEEAARR
ARRTRAEELRHNBARRIEEZZE -

AR HREEEK -
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36.RESERVES (Continued) 36. fifi fhi (%)
Company A A
Employee
share-based Proposed
Share Contributed equity Accumulated final
Premium surplus reserve losses dividend Total
ETRA Bz
RAEE BRERE RitER RERE k]
(note (a))
(Mt () (Ft5E (o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BET T BT BET T
At 1 January 2011 R-E——F—HA—H 294,619 2,121,048 23,600  (1,942,600) 24,156 520,823
Exercise of share options ~ 1T{E B IE 82,254 - (21,235) - - 61,019
Lapse of share options EEREA - - (615) 615 - -
Placing of shares (note 35) B & B(n (fi13135) 226,571 - - - - 226,571
Equity-settled share based MM BER 7 M7
payment (note 37) (Fi5x37) - - 8,931 - - 8,931
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (7,156) - (7,156)
Under-provision for final ~ —ZE—ZEKHRE
dividend for 2010 BETER - (936) - - 936 -
Final dividend paid for 2010 BN -Z—ZFKH
(note 15(0)) I8 (F13E15(0)) - - - - (25,092) (25,092)
Proposed final dividend for 33 ~F——F K
2011 (note 15(a)) 8 (HiiE15(0) - (35,743) - - 35,743 -
At 31 December 2011 RZT——4F
and 1 January 2012 +ZA=+—-Ak
“Z--%-A-H 603,444 2,084,369 10,681 (1,949,141) 35,743 785,096
Exercise of share options ~ {7fB &R E 55,754 - (10,083) - - 45,671
Equity-settled share based MM {D BER 2 H7
payment (note 37) (Pi7E37) - - 8,304 - - 8,304
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (6,391) - (6,391)
Under-provision for final ~ —Z——ERLR S
dividend for 2011 BETE - (144) - - 144 -
Final dividend paid for 2011 Bff =& ——F K H
(note 15(0)) PR 8 (F13E15(0)) - - - - (35,887) (35,887)
Proposed final dividend for & =T ——F K
2012 (note 15(a)) & (fizE15(0) - (56,153) - - 56,153 -
At 31 December 2012 R4
+ZA=+—H 659,198 2,028,072 8,902  (1,955,532) 56,153 796,793

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received over
the par value of shares issued.

(b)  The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all the issued
ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary) and the value
of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution to the shareholders under
certain circumstances. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

(@)

(0)

BB ERTEBMKERR S BRITRNEOEIZE -

BN EBR T HE 1T LA ER Lucky Spark Limited(— R @2
B EHEETL B AR ARG EE LA B AR
HEFEEZHZ 28 - REAERE-NN—FR8DE(K
ER])  EETHERTARRZHARBADRTFRRE < A
i AARTAIRARBHRE RS IR - W5 -

(1) FEEHAZ &R T B BT 2 (57« =

(@ HREEZUSRERLIRAEEYR  DBETRARE
1D EARZ 48 -
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2011 Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 19 May 2011 (the AGM 2011).

The share option scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 by
the Company (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated immediately after the conclusion of the AGM
2011, however, the options granted and remain outstanding
shall continue to be exercised under the terms of issue.

The principal terms of the share option schemes are set out
as follows:

Purpose of the share option schemes

2002 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of this scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

2011 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company
and at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the
results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions.

Eligible Participants of the share option schemes

2002 Share Option Scheme

(i) any executive or non-executive directors of the Group or
any employees of the Group; (ii) any discretionary object
of a discretionary trust established by any employee,
executive or non-executive director of the Group; (iii) any
consultant(s) and professional adviser(s) to the Group;
(iv) Chief Executive (as defined under the Listing Rules)
or Substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company; (v) Associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of Director, Chief Executive or Substantial
Shareholder of the Company; and (vi) employees of the
Substantial Shareholder.

2011 Share Option Scheme

(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or
proposed executive or non-executive directors) of the
Group or any member of the Group and any part-time
employee with weekly working hours of 10 hours or above
of the Group; (ii) any advisor, consultants or agent to the
Group; any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
or any other person who, at the sole discretion of the Board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group; (iii) any
trustee of any trust (whether family, discretionary) whose
beneficiaries or objects include any employee or business
association of the Group.
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ARAR-_E——FHATNARTZRRASF
RE([ZB——FRFBAFAG ) LRAMEA
R E([ T ——FBEREAS D) -

ARRR—_BZ_FEA -+ - RERMZBRE
+§|J(F_—< ToFEREFE DR T ——FR
RRFRGR/EREANELL - A SREAR
RATE 2 FE IR M FE M B IR IR TR ©

B S 2 E2GFEFIOT

Ji e R 2 H
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AR Z B RBE LM EH AR E LS
ZREL BRIz A ERSEE -

ZE AR
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RAESEEDZRERNAARFELRERZ
PR o

IR R E 2 G B s 2 0

BT AR R

N EB A ARTESIERTESTHAEE
FAEE : (\AEEEFEES - IITEBHIEHR
TEERUZZRERZ2AMNEZEZEA ¢ (i)
SEEMEMREERBER  (VARRZITHE
H(EER EMHRADKXFERR(EER TR
Bl WARRIES  TRAHSTERE e
AEER EMHAD  RVIEZRFRZES °

AR AR R R B

O(ARBEARETAKE AR ZEANZRES

NEE(EWRTIERFENTES) URAE
EAMSAINEI10)NRZREBES (1A%

EE R EREMSINE - IASEREE
MR RRE 2 A ER - KEEE2EBIE
7 EE@‘ET“ HASEIEL BB 2 EMEMA

S EEFE(REKEIE) 2 Z5EA - MiZE
u%Z“/\A‘JZﬁT%@?E$%IZEﬂ1E§?%i‘%
BEEA o
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Continued)

Total number of securities issuable

2002 Share Option Scheme

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated and
no further share options have been granted thereafter.
All the outstanding options under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme have been fully exercised.

2011 Share Option Scheme

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme provided that the share options lapsed will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10%
limit.

At the AGM 2011 of the Company convened on 19 May
2011, the said 10% limit of number of shares available for
issue was 25,091,413 shares.

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general
meeting to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In
such event, the total number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 10 % of the total number
of shares in issue as at the date of such approval provided
that share options previously granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised share options) will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained and
subject to the maximum entitlement of each participant
hereinafter mentioned, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
option granted and yet to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such other higher
percentages as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme was 14,335,413 representing approximately 5.11%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

37. DA A 2 B R A B ¥R BN (46)

B AT R A

BB AR IR A
BRIE-TT O FERE B IR EERE
FERTRE c —ER - FEREAETHAR
TTEBRED ZEITE

R AR AT

RIBITE — B — — F B 8 R AR R B E
M EE AT B TR 2 P BRI AT T 84T
ZRM R NMERBRE T — FRRE
HEZHEETROEEZ10% BEELRZE
P T ET HAERZ10% ERRIARA ©

RARFAR-_Z——FRATABRTZ=Z
——FRFBAFRE L Fil10% ERAT T 1T
Z IR BB 725,091,413k 5 ©

BE-—T——FERETE - AARAEREX
G LESERREMME AT Lt 210% &
PR EZBERT  HBRE-_Z——FERESEX
AR BUE e EoAth 8 A A 5T 81 7T 9% 11 2 B P
BT ZBMAE  MEBBNZEHEZAEH#
TR 4882 10% - BRI — T ——F iR
BRACRE B (BEZERARTR B
I BRMECITEZBRE) ST EEZ
10% ERIAR

BE EXPRSEMRE RZE T XA 2 %28
FEZRARBZRR  RITERE-_F—— 5
MRt Bl AR RHEM A EBAET EIERH 2
iH ARAT R B AR BT 2 LD EIR - TNREBBET
IR B 1T 42 812 30% (3k i #R AERT 2 7
SHMESEDLL)

RAFREE - BRE-ZT——FEBREFET T
Rz BIREEEUR14,335,413% - ARZ AR
RAE BTN A5 1% °
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each employee/participant
Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with the particular Participant
(as defined in the Share Option Schemes) and his or her
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining
from voting, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue.

Period to take up share options and minimum period to hold
before exercise

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the period which
the shares must be taken up under a share option and the
minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised are to be decided by the
Directors of the Company upon granting the relevant share
options. Details of such information (if any) relating to the
outstanding share options are set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time to accept
offer

2011 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the
granting of share options shall be accepted within 21 days
from the offer date and by way of payment of consideration
of HK$1.00.

Exercise price

Under the share option schemes, the exercise price shall
be a price determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the offer date;

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
shares as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the offer date;

(ili)y the nominal value of the shares.
Life of the share option schemes

The share option schemes have a life of 10 years from its
adoption date (i.e. 19 May 2011).
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
(Continued)

As at the 31 December 2012, details of outstanding options
granted to eligible persons are as follow

2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option

R-B—=
St

ZARITERERENT -

37. VAIBe oy 2 B R O L i (46)

F+ZA=+—H BTFEERBAL

RR AR IR ) Be R AR B T

Scheme
Number of options
BREHA
Weighted
Closing price average
immediately share price
preceding of shares As at Granted Exercised Asat Fair value
the date Exercise  atthe date 1 January during during 31 December of options
Name of grantee Date of grant of grant price  ofexercise  Exercisable period 2012 the year the year 2012 granted
B
BBRH fiERH RZB-ZfF
R&AZ 2 t2f ERUBRE
ERARS G HIYHE =1-A AYEE
(HKS) (HKS) (HK$'000)
(B¥%7m) (B%7) (B%Tr)
Directors
#H
Foo Kam Chu, Grace 12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 156 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 600,000 - (600,000) - N/A
ks “2-RE-ATIA “F-f1-ATZBE TER
“EEEAZT-A
6/12/2011 8.60 871 NA 612/2012 10 5/12/2015 550,000 - - 550,000 N/A
! TER  ZE-ZFTZA5EE el
ZZ-RFT-AEA
Chan Wai Ling 12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 156 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - N/A
REE “E-TET-A12A “2—%1-AT2EE TER
ik St o et
6/12/2011 8.60 871 NA- 6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 N/A
“I--E+Zf58 TER  ZE--FT-ARBZ TER
“Z-RFT-AER
Kong Siu Man, Kenny 9/11/2009 484 494 1216 9/11/2010t0 21/7/2012 120,000 - (120,000) - N/A
BAR ZFENFT-ANA ZT-35+-AhAZ TR
Z5-Z§tAzt-B
12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 156 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 250,000 - (250,000) - N/A
Z5-3E+-F12A “I—FT-ATIEE TR
ZE-ZftAZT-H
6/12/2011 8.60 871 NA 6112/2012 to 512/2015 300,000 - - 300,000 N/A
“T—ErZf5H MR ZE-CETZARBRE R
“E-nft-ALA
Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson ~ 12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 156 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 30,000 - 30,000) - N/A
Yz8 “E-EET-A128 “E-f1-ATZBE TR
“B-CFrAzT-H
6/12/2011 8.60 871 NA 612/2012 10 5/12/2015 120,000 - - 120,000 N/A
ZE-F1ZA5E MR ZE-CETZAREE TR
“2-1%t-AER
Other Employees 19/7/2007 617 6.17 1084 18/1/2008 to 21/7/2012 80,000 - (80,000) - N/A
hER ZIStELATAR ZFEN\F-AT/\RZ TR
ik St o
9/11/2009 484 494 1084 9/11/2010t0 21/7/2012 200,000 - (200,000) - N/A
ZEENFT-ANA ZE-RET-ANEE TER
ik St i
12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 .65 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 2,530,000 - (2,530,000) - N/A
ZE-ZET-A12A ZF—F1-ATZRZ TER
ik St o
6/12/2011 8.60 871 1544 6121201210 5/12/2015 2,590,000 - (10,000) 2,580,000 N/A
ZF—F1ZARR “E-CETCAREE TR
“E-RET-AER
11,370,000 - (5,820,000) 5,550,000
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION  37. PLI%4y 5 3k o iR B SR (&)

(Continued)
As at the 31 December 2011, details of outstanding options NZEB——F+-A=1+—8  BFEEHRAL
granted to eligible persons are as follow: ZARITEEBRENT
2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option TRBTAERERE S B R R — AR R
Scheme (Continued) (%)
Number of options
ERERA
Weighted
average
Closing price closing price
immediately of shares Exercised/
preceding immediately As at Granted (lapsed)* As at Fair value
the date Exercise before 1 January during during 31 December of options
Name of grantee Date of grant of grant price  exercise date  Exercisable period 201 the year the year granted
RORBETR
RERLAZ BaT2mE R=%--F Enfife/ EREERE
BRALS REAH LG ke VEHHE 4 -B-A FRRY (%30)* AY{ERE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS'000)
(%7) (% 7) (M7) (R®T7)
Directors
it
Foo Kam Chu, Grace 19/7/2007 6.17 6.17 1802 18/1/2008 to 21/7/2012 600,000 - (600,000) - NA
Be% ZERHELATNA “FRN\E-ATNRE HaR
SE-CREAZ-A
28/10/2008 150 176 1802 27/4/2009t0 21/7/2012 600,000 - (600,000) - NA
ZERNETAZTIR ZERNFRACTHRE TR
ZE-ZELAZ1-R
9/11/2009 484 49 18302 9/11/201010 21/7/2012 600,000 - (600,000) - NA
ZEEAET-ANA ZE-BET-fNEE RER
ZE-ZELAZ1-R
12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 NA 12/11/2011 10 21/7/2012 600,000 - - 600,000 NA
Z3-RET-AT2H MER  E--§r-AtzRE 1R
ZE-ZELATT-R
6/12/2011 8.60 8.1 NA 6/12/2012105/12/2015 - 550,000 - 550,000 1,275
215 B ZE-CETIAABEE
Z2-RETARA
Chan Wai Ling 19/7/2007 6.17 6.17 1802 18/1/2008to 21/7/2012 2,000,000 - 2,000,000) - N/A
k2% ZERLELATIR ZFFNF-AT\RE TR
“3-ZftAz1-A
28/10/2008 150 176 1302 27/4/2009 10 21/7/2012 2,000,000 - 2,000,000) - N/A
ZEEETAZTA ZIENFRACTHRE HaR
“E-CEtA-+-H
9/11/2009 48 49 1802 9/11/2010t0 21/7/2012 2,000,000 - 2,000,000) - N/A
ZEENET-ANA ZE-TEr-ANRE FER
“3-ZftAz1-A
121112010 8.18 8.15 NA - 12/11/2011 10 21/7/2012 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 N/A
ZE-ZE-A1CA TER  ZE§t-At-RE Bk
“3-ZftAz1-A
6/12/2011 8.60 8.1 NA - 6/12/2012 10 5/12/2015 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 4634
ZE-—ETZA5A MER  ZE-CET-ARAZ
Z2-RETALA
Kong Siu Men, Kenny 9/11/2009 484 49 NA - 9/11/201010 21/7/2012 120,000 - - 120,000 N/A
B4R ZERNET-ANE TEB  ZE-TET-ANEE il
ZE-CErA1-H
12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 NA - 12/11/2011 10 21/7/2012 250,000 - - 250,000 N/A
ZR-RET-ATIR TER  ZE--Ft-AtCEE il
ZE-CErAt-H
6/12/2011 8.60 8.71 NA  6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015 - 300,000 - 300,000 695
e MER  Z3-ZEtzARAZ
“Z-TETZARH
Tse Wai Hang 1211172010 8.18 8.15 871 12/11/2011 to 21/7/2012 50,000 - (50,000 - NA
HES ZE2-BET-ATCA “E-5t-AT2EE RER

Z3-ELAZ-R
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
(Continued)

As at the 31 December 2011, details of outstanding options
granted to eligible persons are as follow: (Continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option
Scheme (Continued)

(#)

37. VAIBe oy 2 B R O L i (46)

RZBE——F+-A=+—H BTFEEBAL
ZARITEERENT - (4

TR AR R R R ) By R AR B R )

Number of options
EREHE
Weighted
average
Closing price closing price
immediately of shares Exercised/
preceding immediately Asat Granted (lapsed)* As at Fair value
the date Exercise before 1 January during during 31 December of options
Name of grantee Date of grant of grant price  exercise date  Exercisable period 201 the year the year granted
RORBETR
BERIAZ BEAIZIE RZB--& BREBRE
BRALA REAH ifE kR THUPE  EH -A-A ERRL (%30)* AYEE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS'000)
(-1 (% 7) (%M 7) (B%Tn)
Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson ~ 12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 NA 1211172011 0 21/7/2012 30,000 - - 30,000 NA
(appointed on 20/11/2011) —E-FE+-f+2R NER  ZE-Et-AfzBE NEg
L] ZR-ELAZT-8
(R=B——%1-4
ZTHBEEE)
6/12/2011 8.60 8.7 NA - 6/12/2012 t0 5/12/2015 - 120,000 - 120,000 278
CE—ETZ A5 TEE  CI-CETCRABEE
Z2-ETALA
Liang Yanfeng 8/1/2007 260 2.52 1320 20/5/2007 10 19/5/2012 90,000 - 90,000) - NA
22k ZERtE-A)R ZERCERACTAR TR
“E-"ERATARA
19/7/2007 6.17 6.17 1320 18/1/2008 10 21/7/2012 90,000 - 90,000) - NA
ZEREELATNA ZRR\E-RT/EE TR
e
281012008 1.50 176 1820 27/4/2009 10 21/7/2012 90,000 - 90,000) - NA
ZERNETAZTIR ZERNEMACTHAR TR
“E2-CEtA+-H
Meng Qinghui 47712005 2.35 2.38 NA 4/1/2006 0 3/1/2011 90,000 - (90,000 - NA
753 “3TRECARA TER  ZEINE-ARAZ AR
—2—5-A=f
19/12/2006 269 2.52 N 20/5/2007 0 19/5/2012 90,000 - (90,000 - NA
ZERAETZATAR Mg -EEtFRACTAZ i
“I-"ERfiThE
19/7/2007 6.17 6.17 NA 18/1/2008 10 21/7/2012 90,000 - (90,000 - NA
ZEREELATAR Mg ZEENF-AT/\RZ AR
e
28/10/2008 1.50 176 NA 27/4/2009 0 21/7/2012 90,000 - 90,000 - NA
ZERNETAZTIR TR ZEINEMACTLAZ AR
ik
Other employees 19/7/2007 6.17 6.17 1306 18/1/2008 10 21/7/2012 2,270,000 - 2,190,000) 80,000 NA
Hftieg ZEREELATAR ZFENF-AT\RZ HaR
ZE-TErA-1-H
281012008 1.50 176 1300 27/42009 10 21/7/2012 2,030,000 - 2,030,000) - NA
ZERNETAZTIR ZEENFMACTHRAZ HaR
“E-TELA1-H
9/11/2009 484 494 1308 9/11/201010 21/7/2012 2,340,000 - 2,140,000) 200,000 NA
ZERAET-ANR “I-TET-fREE TR
“E-TELA1-H
12/11/2010 8.18 8.15 NA - 1211172011 10 21/7/2012 2,640,000 - (110,000" 2,530,000 NA
CE-ZET-f1CA Mg ZE4§t-At-RE HaR
ZF-ZRLfzT-A
6/11/2011 8.60 8.7 NA - 6/12/2012 t0 5/12/2015 - 2,590,000 - 2,590,000 6,001
ZE—ET-5H TR CI-CETIRABEE
Z2-nETALA
20,760,000 5560000 (14,950,000 11,370,000 12,883
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Continued)

Share options 5,560,000 were granted under 2011 Share
Option Scheme on 6 December 2011 (the “Grant Date”),
and the vesting schedule of the share options granted are as
follows:

(@) 50% of the options can be exercised at any time after
first anniversary of the Grant Date (“Tranche A”);

(b) 25% of the options can be exercised at any time after
second anniversary of the Grant Date (“Tranche B”);
and

(c) The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised
at any time after third anniversary of the Grant Date
(“Tranche C”)

The fair value of the options granted in last financial year
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme determined at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
was HK$12,883,000.

On 3 January 2013, 5,196,000 share options (the “Options”)
to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each of the Company were granted to certain
eligible individuals, including executive directors, under
2011 Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
19 May 2011. The exercise price of the Options granted is
HK$15.76 per share. The details of which were disclosed
in the announcement dated 3 January 2013. Save as
disclosed above, no share options have been granted as at
the date of this Report.

Tranche A
HERA
Date of grant 6 December 2011
s qun=p:1 —2——F+=ZANH
Closing share price immediately HK$8.59 per share
preceding the date of grant FRRABEES.597T

SEF LAYz RO KTE

Expected volatility (based on the 42.66%
annualised historical volatility of
the closing price of the shares
of the Company for the past five
years to the dates of grant)

TEERIE (BT RFERE A
RRRROWTERERE2F
BIERE)

Expected life (in years) 2.501
FAFHRAEH(F)

Risk-free interest rate 0.375%
S5 LR F

Expected dividend yield 1.163%
R B &
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37. VIt 2 B % O L i (%)

R-ZB——F+-ARB(RLEEHDRE-Z
——FEBIRERT BIR H 2 5,660,00015 8 A% 2 K
RBREzBERERAT

() WBREZ50%FIAE N MRS —BFERE
SR HRALD

() WBREZ25%FI AR AMRE BFERE
MEETE(HXB]) « &

() BRIEZHRT25%ANEHAMRE=RASF
BAEAERETE(TH#IRC]) -

RE-T——FERETSE E—AHBREEF
s — 478 3% (Black-Scholes ) B8 IR 1 E (B 18
METsMELBERERNEEBHZ AFERS
#12,883,0007T °

RZE-—=F—A=ZH ARARBER=ZE
——FRATABREMZ T —FERE
2| - 155,196, OOOT‘%HXT&(F@%HMEJ)?“%%%E
BERALT BEATESZ  IRUIABR
5,196,000HQ$’AETHﬁ@@;‘%%o.mﬁzgﬁ
B - BB ZITRERTREK1576BTT - B
BHBER T —=F-A=ZB2AMEE KL
NEEEN  RARESEH - SEERECER

& o

Tranche B Tranche C
#t)xB #tixC

6 December 2011 6 December 2011

—FE——F+-AXH —ZT——F+=-H/XH
HK$8.59 per share HK$8.59 per share

FRREE8.597T % B #8.597T
45.55% 47.32%
3.001 3.501
0.443% 0.545%
1.163% 1.163%
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37.SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2012, all options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme were exercised during the year
(2011: 5,810,000 were exercisable) and 2,770,000 (2011:
Nil) share options under 2011 Share Option Scheme are
exercisable.

The share options vest upon the commencement of
the exercisable period and the total vested amount of
HK$8,304,000 (2011: HK$8,931,000) was expensed
through the profit or loss.

Weighted average exercise price for share options
exercisable as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 was HK$8.71 and HK$7.95 respectively and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.9 years
(2011: 2.2 years).

38. COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

37. VAIBe oy 2 B R O L i (46)

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—08 RE-ZFZ=F
BRETEZBREEZ2BTE(ZE——F ¢
A[47{£5,810,00010 ) + A RRIE =T ——FHERKR
BEEH 2T F17(£2,770,000 (- T ——4F ¢
) o

BRERNITERMAERE  ERBESERK
8,304,00070( == ——4F : &#8,931,00070)
EREIRTHE -

RZE——ZF+ZA=+—HBHERZZT—F+=
A=+—8 ' A{T{FERERENINETHITEES
B BEES. 71T BT 957 - MINEFHHT
ARFER2.9F(ZT——F : 2.24F) o

38. K5
(a) AREHITRYS
R-ZE——G+=-A=+—8  A&EERE
TAHHE LR ERN KRN 2 RIELTRS

payable by the Group as follows: mr
Group AL
2012 2011
—B——fF —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T P T I
Within one year —FR 3,456 1,276
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFHF
(ERMFEBEEN) 437 407
3,893 1,683

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases run for period of one to
three years. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEBERERK2HELEZEYE - BHA
—E2=F - HEMAYBEIAES -
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38. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 38. A& (%)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEYE
Group AR LE
2012 2011
—B-=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4 MR
- Construction costs and service — W EBRE 7 RN MR
expenses of property development %8R 261,197 289,870
- Acquisition of properties — W EE 1,010,720 20,554
- Capital contribution to Hong Kong — BRI EERER
and PRC subsidiaries of property ZEBNTENEBER A
development business HE 7 A E 163,720 31,610
1,435,637 342,034
All capital commitments are due for contribution in the FTBEAREEG R ARR A+ @A AR B
coming twelve months. e
Company AN
The Company does not have any significant RZTZ—=ZF+ZA=+—H  AARHE
commitments as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). FEAEREE(ZT—F : &) -

39. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KRR & &M 5 % H

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future aggregate F:;ﬂi*_iﬂ-—ﬂ =t+—0B  REERETA
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating BHCEHER T REF AR HELHE
leases in respect of land and buildings as follows: 0T
2012 2011
—B-=F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Within one year —FR 328,466 237,495
In the second to fifth years inclusive EEFERTF
(BEMFREEAN) 429,043 271,094
757,509 508,589
The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under REERBLKEHERHDEEREAYZE (T
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period 17) YR —ZE P - EERF B H AR
of one to four years, with an option to renew the lease terms SEEFFEAEAETRE Z BHER - ALK
at the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between KR EABABHNHERS -

the Group and the respective tenants. The terms of the
leases also require the tenants to pay rental deposits.
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

During the course of business, certain bank accounts
were opened and held in the name of certain
subsidiaries on behalf of third parties to whom these
subsidiaries provided building management services. As
at the reporting date, those bank balances which were
held on behalf of third parties and were not accounted
for in the financial statements of the Group amounted to
HK$5,439,000 (2011: HK$4,322,000).

Since the Group commenced legal proceedings HCA
1902/2009 against a joint venture partner in 2009,
with whom the Group has a joint venture agreement
for the development and construction of village house
in the New Territories, the Group filed a re-amended
statement of claim in December 2012. The exchange of
pleadings are still ongoing and the trial date is yet to be
fixed by the Court.

In view of the Group’s legal advisor unable to assess the
likely outcome, provision for amount due from jointly-
controlled entity and provision for legal costs which
amounted to HK$15,565,000 and HK$4,200,000 are
made respectively.

41.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Company has executed guarantees amounting to
HK$3,958,774,000 (2011: HK$4,204,399,000) with respect
to bank loans to its subsidiaries, which are also secured
against properties held by those subsidiaries. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the bank
if the bank is unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
date, no provision for the Company’s obligation under
the guarantee contracts has been made as the Directors
consider that it was not probable that the repayment of the
loan would be in default.

40. iR AL fE

(a)

REBBRER  ETHBARNEZER
FE=H(MBRRAERHBEFEERE
AT)BAEREERFEETRITERS - REREB
B ZEAHBES5,439,000 (T ——
F 1 B¥4,8322,0007T) ZRITHEBHBTIRE=
FRA TEFARNEBZHHHRE -

RZZTNF  AEER—ZEEEH(E
SEBRRFARRKARZNERETEAE
W% ) I BAA 212 FFHCA1902/2009 » A&
ER T —F T ARG BT RERMR
MmE - EFMEIBRMRET - FENBHNAE
BERRHETE

PR A B R AR R AR AL AT (A A R A AT AE
M M — R RS E B RUE Rk
BRKEHREE - 28 AE15,565,0007T
K8 #4,200,0007T °

11.MBBEREL

ZIN/N

FAEREMBRARZRITERESAH

7 1 3,058,774,000 L (Z & — —F + B
4,204,399,00070) Z ARG X - MAZEWRE A
R A ZMEERR - BEZEREL - WRTT

R
o

(A

EREZER - ARRBEERRITNZE

HREFRBRZERTAATREBBIER » &
RI|EBH - ARBUERZERGOT 2

FBIEHRE -
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42.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BN L2 5
The following transactions with related parties were, in the BERA NIRERNEBBATETZZSD
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of REEXBBREPET

business during the year:

2012 2011
. —F——5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Related companies 2 PNG|
Operating lease charges in respect of FEYMEZKERELH
residential properties (note (a)) (Bf5E(a)) 640 920

Operating lease charges and management gt — &R AP EEMN Z iD=
fee in respect of office premises situated PEZICERETHRER

in Guangzhou, PRC (note (b)) & (Mi5E(0)) 1,389 1,356

Interest expenses on unsecured revolving EIKHBREERRE 2

credit facility (note (c)) FERX (K5ECe) 2,795 5,604
Purchase of investment property (note (d)) BB EREWE () 6,000 5,500
Rental expense for leasing a motor vehicle MESEZHSH L

(note (e)) (BF5E(e)) 132 -

Purchase of a motor vehicle (note () BEE TE (M) 226 -

Notes: P 5E -

(@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a (@ ARAZ-FRMBARE-RERAAAEER—BHRTE
related company, in which the Chairman and an executive director of ENRBEREZHERRAETELN  UEAESEE
the Company have equity interests, for leasing a residential property 80,0007 F MEMREBZ —HEEMH hH-_F—FTF
situated in Hong Kong for a period of one year commencing from 1 May FA—BRE-T——FWA=1+HI BH—F-

2010 and expiring on 30 April 2011 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.

Another subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement ARAB-—RMBARE-—RERAR —BRTEFD A
with a related company, in which an executive director of the Company HAEER 2 BEARFIELY - LS AHEEEES50,000
has equity interests, for leasing a residential property situated in Hong T HEUREBZ —HEAEEWE BH-_T——FhA—
Kong for a period of one year commencing from 1 September 2011 ARE-_ZT——F/\A=1+—Hi " A#—F  -BAHEE
and expiring on 31 August 2012 at a monthly rental of HK$50,000. The BE AT —FAA-BRBRE_ZE—Z=FNA=+—
tenancy agreement was renewed for a period of one year commencing HiE - BEA—% - A REE60,0007T ©

from 1 September 2012 and expiring on 31 August 2013 at a monthly
rental of HK$60,000.

(b)  Certain subsidiaries of the Company entered into tenancy agreements b) ARAEFTREMBRAAE-—RAARRARAEFER—BRIT
with a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive ERMARR BERRNRITEY  HECRFEREMNZ
director of the Company have interests, for leasing a number of MEERDERR -

premises situated at Guangzhou, PRC for office purpose.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) On 27 February 2011, a related company in which the Chairman and
an executive director of the Company have interests, has agreed
to increase an unsecured revolving credit facility of amount to
HK$150,000,000 from HK$100,000,000 to a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group and extend the maturity date to 30 April 2014. On 15
September 2011, interest rate on Hong Kong dollars lending had been
changed to prime lending rate plus 1% per annum. For RMB loan,
interest rate is the RMB loan (for tenure of 1-3 years) interest rate
specified by People’s Bank of China plus 1.5% per annum. As at 31
December 2012, the unsecured revolving credit facility was not utilised

(2011: Nil).

(d)  On 21 November 2012, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
agreement with a related party, who is a close family member of the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, for purchasing
the property at a consideration of HK$6,000,000. For the year ended
31 December 2011, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
agreement with a related party, who is a close family member of the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, for purchasing the

property at a consideration of HK$5,500,000.

(e) A subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with a related
company, in which the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company have equity interests, for leasing a motor vehicle at a monthly

rental of HK$12,000.

()  On 21 November 2012, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
agreement with a related company, in which the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company have equity interests, for purchasing
a motor vehicle at a consideration of HK$226,000.

42,

Bl g N 132 5 (A

WiE - (48)

) ®
1

“E-—F-AF+tR —RAARFLIER—EH
ERBARSZWEARNERABENAEEZ —RK2E

B8 A B 2 EAK AR (S B EE)E + B75%5100,000,0007T 1
hNZE#E#150,000,0007C * WHEIBAAERE —F—MFH

A=tB -R-ZT——%AA+HA

CRETEENREE

BABEENEMEFNEE - ARBEEFHARAAR
SFITHEEARBER(FH1Z3F)FRMENER1LE - B
T —F+ZA=+—H APDARREERESE(Z

T )

d RZF-—=F+—A=+—B FARKBERAEBEA
T(AARRAEFERPITEF ZIEH) I BE - ARES
#6,000,000CEENE - BE-_T——F+=-A=+—8
IHFE - AR RS R R BREEEA £ (BARA R ERERNT
ERZIAH) AR - R EERES5,500,0007THE E W% -

@ ARAMBATEBERARNARADNEFELMITESHEL
R8T L% - A ATEAB 12,000 LA AE -

Hh RZZ——F+—A-+—H ARAWBIREPIL
FAARFERRBITESHA LB L - URES

#£226,000 08 B /T ©

Key management personnel compensation: TEEIEABSFHH
2012 2011
—g-—-% -z %
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T P T I
Basic salaries and other benefits EX e REMER 21,259 20,034
Pension costs — defined contribution plan BIRE KA — ERBERETE 96 95

Equity-settled share based payment VAR i 45 & LARR (9 &

RS ANE 8,065 8,585
29,420 28,714
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43, IEWE A A Z i Ok 48)

2012
—E—_F

2011
—F——%F
HK$’'000
ST TT

HK$’000
BET T

Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE -
Investment properties (note 17) WEYHE(ME17) 95,567 -
Other receivables, prepayments H b U FRIE - TR RIB

and deposits Ring 100 3,105
Tax recoverable AU B A IR 16 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEED 10 20,855
Other payables and accruals b A5 FRIE R FERT RUE (1,733) (422)
Provision for income tax FRiSTi B = (20,853)

93,960 2,685

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz K= (EE) 121,040 (2,685)
Total consideration BRE 215,000 -
Satisfied by: THRAR
Cash "4 215,000 -

An analysis of net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as

follows:

Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising on disposal: H&EKESZIHERA

FHRLEWNBRARAZRERBESSEEYDR
A/ O ) FEAMMT -

2012
—E—_F

2011
—F——F
HK$’000
BT

HK$’000
BET T

(T ) F88 -
Cash consideration received EYORER(E 215,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of CDHERSRESEED (10) (20,855)
214,990 (20,855)
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44.ASSETS ACQUISITION

On 13 November 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests of Utmost Wealth Limited (“Utmost Wealth”). The
principal activity of Utmost Wealth is investment holding and
it has a wholly-owned subsidiary, Vast Rich (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Vast Rich”), which is the registered and beneficial
owner of an investment property situated in Hong Kong.
The consideration for the 100% equity interests in Utmost
Wealth and an unsecured, interest free borrowing due and
payable by Vast Rich to a third party (the “Sale Debt”) was
HK$4,789,000. The underlying set of assets acquired was
not integrated in forming a business to generate revenues.
As such, the Directors are of the opinion that the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Utmost Wealth and the Sale
Debt was a purchase of net assets which did not constitute
a business combination for accounting purpose.

44. & EWH

R-Z——F+—A+=8  REBUWEUtmost
Wealth Limited ([ Utmost Wealth ]) 2 #8425 ©
Utmost Wealthf) X ZX B REEIER L HEES
—f2 &} B A 7Vast Rich (Hong Kong) Limited
([vast Rich]) - REBREMENTMEER
%A A ° Utmost Wealth#) 2 3 #£ 254 & [ Vast
RichAE =AM REMERALSEE
([S4EET ) B4,789,0007T © %48 Fr Uy BE #8 B8
BETEFEHE - NEENEERSEZER -
it - EERABKFEUtmost Wealth 2 3P 25 [ §4
EEEDHWEFEE - e EREm s L TER
EBEH -

Acquiree’s

carrying
amount Fair value

WEE TS 2
BRI {E AFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
P T IT P T I
Investment properties (note 17) BEYE(HFE17) 4,687 4,802
Borrowing BE (4,694) (4,694)
Other payables HAb T 5RIE (13) (13)
Net (liabilities)/assets acquired FrikEE(aE),  BEFHE (20) 95

Satisfied by: SRR

Cash consideration HERE 4,789
Less: Purchase of Sale Debt B BEHEER (4,694)
95

Net cash outflow arising on asset acquisition: & ZEWEELSHIR &

MR

Purchase consideration settled in cash

R & X 2 WIBRE

(4,789)
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

45 B T H
45,1 B B L R e kB

The Group is exposed to market risk, specifically to
credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, and interest
rate risk in the normal course of business. The Group
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage the Group’s exposure to the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to
the market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group
has not used any derivatives and other instruments for
hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group
is exposed to are described below. A summary of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities by category is
disclosed in note 45.2.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
through the impact of interest rate changes on its
interest bearing borrowings, and cash and cash
equivalents. The interest rates and repayment
terms of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings are disclosed in notes 30 and 33
respectively. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely monitors its loan portfolio and compares
the interest margin under loan agreements with
existing banks against new offers on borrowing
rates from different banks in the loan re-financing
and negotiation process.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

AEBERBBREBRZETS AR - FHRE
SRk RBESER  EEREBRRFEE
B o 75 [P 4 4 () 5 T LB B IR R 3
5l AW - EFTHEFREEOMN RBIERE
MAE R A KBS ISER -

—RME - ARERERREESIARTE
B o B PSR PS5 AR A 15 I S AR K
o BURSR BN SR AT A T Ak Al
TAEHEMZMA » REEWEFHRETIT
AMBTAEEERS - ARBEMARZ &
BEAFBEBEIINT - REBIRZERE D
ZHMBEERBBHERENE45.2

(a) F 5/ B

FEREBEFETAZ AFEXRES R
ERTSF XS MR EE 2 AKLE
B AEEENEEE  REEERFPZ
BIHER URBERBEEED 2T
EEHMELFERRERE - AEERES
FBESESEMARBEZ MR RERE
T BRI M FE30 33 5E - ANEEIR
BRI A R EORBUR o A ANEEE
PERHEEFESG  TEERBRER
AElRiEd - BREARITAFIZLERB
FEZBMENRETRBITIREZFERE
EFRELLE -

AEEBEEFREEBKBEEEMNXARZ
BOK - BERBEWRERBER -
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to variable-rate financial instruments at
that date. The 25 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a
general increase of 25 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately HK$2,900,000 (2011:
HK$4,005,000), increase the interest capitalised
into the Group’s investment properties and
properties under development by HK$1,236,000
and HK$1,237,000 respectively (2011:
HK$1,188,000 and HK$1,390,000 respectively).
There is no impact on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the general
increase in interest rates. A decrease of 25 basis
points in interest rate would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above financial instruments
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts of these financial
assets presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of impairment losses.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

45. W8 T H (%)
45,1 S0 LA B R O (480

(a)

(b)

5 b ()

FYH M8 77
ERSRES T HERRF RN EE R E
ERYMET  WRARZAZHET
BREBI B TH - 26(@E2E 2 IRRIEE
BESEETFEAEA L2 BRAT
RZAEAREP G - RBE-T
——F+t-A=+t—-BULFEEAER
EAEERDHT -

RZE—=F+=ZA= + A A
Hi S HRFIAEZBERT - HaTF
1%%@%7][1251@%%& Hwﬁ&ﬁ%@&%
8 1% 45 7 S AR BB 4 1 497 6 2,900,000
TL(ZZE——4 : B14,0050007L)
BREBAEBMBENERERTYE
2 FI B 5 BI7E 1,236,000 7T & 7B
#1,237,00070 (=T ——F : DRIEBE
1,188,0007T % /& #1,390,0007T ) °
KRB MR EER 2 Atk E D
jﬁﬂi%ﬁ% 1E>z ST H Al #EHREF T
% FIRF A5 EEBE Y Et BT
W*ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ}iz%% o

= di
EERBRIENEITA S HFHRBITR
BUBETAKRZETMERAEER
R BEEZRR - AEEZEERE
TEREEHREAMBURFBURRS
LIReEEY - WEMBEE ZRAE
CHBRREBBERGATERIERE
P BERERBEEBE - UHEEY
ERAZZILEEERR
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

45. W8 T H (%)
45,1 S0 L A 0 R O (480

(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers. Further quantitative disclosure in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 28.

The Group has deposited its cash with various
banks. The credit risk on cash and bank balances is
limited because most of the Group’s bank deposits
are deposited with major banks located in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The policies to manage credit risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to have been effective.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group/Company mainly operates and
invests in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in HK$
and RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for the financial assets in the PRC as
they were denominated in a currency same as the
functional currencies of the group entities to which
these transactions relate.

(b) 1 E/Ef (4)

B S REMBYGIETS - B EK
BRETEESEZBTPETEMNEER
FHE - ZEFEEPRE PR B S
R BELHENB A ZHRES - LE
BEPZEERBEMN UREPKE
ZRBEEBERE - —RWE  BUEE
Re\P 2 WERERBKADIN - KE
B0 A E A P U R o BRI
SERBSRAMEKFEELEZ ER
[RfR 2 3 — BT R R T 28 o

FEBEFREHMRT - AR REE
REARITERFBA LR EE R B
ZEBRITRMBEE - BRE KR
EHZEERBRAR -

AEEBEEFREEKBEEEERERRZ
B - BERBEWRERBER -

(c) SMIEIE fE

SRR IE RN EREEHERUB A
ZAFEIARKRRERE B AR -
AEE/ARAETEREERTEEE
REE - MABIRZHHAEERAR
BREMRGEE R PRYBEEZ
ERBEUREHRG ARERRZY
BLEWIER - MDA INE R -
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to ensure
adequate funds to meet commitments associated
with its financial liabilities. Cash flows are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group will raise
funds from the realisation of its assets if required.
The Directors are satisfied that the Group will be
able to meet in full its financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, for term loans which
contain a repayment on demand clause which
can be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion,
the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required
to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.

45. 1 TH (8)
45,1 BB IR B B R OO ()

(d) B & &M EE

MBE S RERENEE K EERTHEN
BEEREZEEZRER - REEE
HESENRE - BN ERREMEN
RAREEARRERSREER AR
nPETRER - NEEZBRARRAE
RRESBROTEAMBEERB LA
EoRERNEFERTYER - WEH
E RERESENESEES -EFE
A BN R AR R 2 BEER
HETBEAE -

TR AKE M BEEREERZ
FIRE K EEFE - DRBESHENER
RenE(BRBRMNAAHNE - RIA
FEIFE - BIERRE R RS
ZRE)RAEEA AN Z &R H
HatH - LER - BBaRRITE%
BETTE 2 IR BESRME R R 2 B HE K
& OB SRR S E &G
HRENIEESER - BERARAX
Nz &FHRRZBELRE -
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45, WB T H (%)
45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies 45,1 B 75 I B A P A % oK ()
(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) JBE 2 b (%)
Group RIE

31 December 2012
Maturity Analysis -
Undiscounted cash outflows
—E2-ZH+ZH=t+—H

HBERAIT—RKIFEBEER

Total

contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHFENR —FRH

IREE BREeREHAE RERE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BET T

Trade payables B 5 e 8 97,165 97,165 97,165
Accrued expenses and other JEfTE KR HA

payables i ARESE] 253,635 253,635 253,635
Bank loans, secured IRITER - BT 2,461 2,637 2,637

Bank loans, secured, subject to  $R{TE R - B
repayment on demand clause I B RESRKERHER 2,991,040 2,991,040 2,991,040

3,344,301 3,344,477 3,344,477

31 December 2011
Maturity Analysis —
Undiscounted cash outflows
—T——F+-f=+-—A
HHERAT—ARITHRB SR

Total

contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or

amount cash flow on demand

SRR —F A

FEE Ren=ER% R E K

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT

Trade payables B S ENRIA 65,209 65,209 65,209
Accrued expenses and other JENEBRNEM

payables FET R IE 142,118 142,118 142,118

Bank loans, secured RITEZ - 24,000 24,688 24,688

Bank loans, secured, subjectto  $R{TE - HEMA -
repayment on demand clause B REREBKER 3,485,413 3,485,413 3,485,413

3,716,740 3,717,428 3,717,428
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of the terms loans with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“within 1 year or on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis shown above. Taking into account
the Group’s financial positions, the Directors do
not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such terms
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in their loan agreements.

45. 1 TH (8)
45,1 BB IR B B R OO ()

(d) B & MR (A)

TR ASRERKEBEER 2 EHE
RIEER BRI EIREERELZ
FHERDM - ZESHEBERALOF
KHEZFEMR - Bt > ZELED
REXFREIBERANER [ —FAK
RERE | RHBEANRE L &HE - =
RAKEZFBERR - EFRBRITT
RATRETTIR E BB kAN &R - &
FRE  ZEFHRERBRERBEM
B2 EERRAHEE -

Maturity Analysis - Term loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

RERCENBMEL 2 HBRRA -HERRRERRA L BHER

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted

amount cash flow
&8

FHR

BefE

kaEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

31 December 2012 —F—_4
FOASECH S 2,991,040 3,158,560

More than More than

1 year PATCEIG

but not but not
exceeding exceeding More than
AL 5 years 5 years

~ERE WAL
BTEERF ETRREE ML
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR  BETR

237,195 1,335,527 293,907

31 December 2011 —E——F
+=A=+-8 3485413 3,639,696

183,602 1,254,214 367,886
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45.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. 4% TH(#)
45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies 451 BRI B A P E R R K ()
(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) B &2 b (%)
Company Aol

31 December 2012
—E—-—F+=A=+-—H
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or

amount cash flow on demand
ERFERR —F R

REE BHeREAHE RERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T

Accrued expenses and FERTE A R HEA

other payables FET R 301 301 301
Financial guarantee issued BB BER

Maximum amount guaranteed HSRESHE 3,958,774 3,958,774 3,958,774

31 December 2011
—FT——%t+-A=t-~

Total

contractual Within

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or

amount cash flow on demand

BRI —F N

REE Hens8% R E R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT BT T BT T
Accrued expenses and e E A REAM

other payables FEfT A 196 196 196
Financial guarantee issued BB BB ER

Maximum amount guaranteed SR ERESEE 4,204,399 4,204,399 4,204,399
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Company (Continued)
In view of cash outflows arising from short-term
liabilities and capital commitment (note 38(b)), the
Directors consider the Group will be able to meet
its obligations when they fall due for the following
reasons:

() a related company granted an unsecured
revolving credit facility with unutilised portion of
HK$150,000,000 with maturity date on 30 April
2014 (note 42(c));

(i) a consistent cash inflow is generated by
steady rental income from its property leasing
business;

(i) with net assets of HK$13,802,206,000 (2011:
HK$10,277,734,000), the Group should be
able to secure additional loan facilities, if
necessary.

45. 1 TH (8)
45,1 BB IR B B R OO ()

(d) B & MR (A)
ALvw] ()
AR BB (E B AN ARHE (M RE38(b))
EXReRY  BEFARENUTR

.

(i

(ii)

FEE KRN ERHRHEE

—REEQRETERIFER
EERE ABEIHEE
150,000,000 7T * 2|8 H A= F
—FNA =+ 8 (ME42()) :

EMEREEB REHSRAE
EHERERA

XN &E B B FEESE
13,802,206,0007L( =T — —4F :
H#10,277,734,0007T ) - FEBEE
BEZHISHEINERRE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.2 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities as recognised
at the reporting dates are categorised as follows. See
notes 4.11(i) and 4.11(iv) for explanations about how

Notes to the Financial Statements

B WA M

45, B T H(4)

45 23BN H) 43 Z B M B R R
AEBRARRZHBEERABREEH
WREEAES BT - EEMBITAE Y
MR EERRTEZRE - F2HENE
441() R4 11(v) ©

the categorisation of financial instruments affects their
subsequent measurements.

Group Company
REHE RN F]
2012 2011 2012 2011
=E--—F —T——F =B "—T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST I BT T P T I
Financial assets 0
Available-for-sale AHHEMKEE
financial assets 10 10 - -
Loans and receivables &3 K& fEW 7B
- Trade receivables, —EZ S RWGIE
net HEE 117,182 89,235 - -
— Other receivables, — HAth e GRIE -
net SEER 27,225 6,131 - -
- Amount due froma  —JEUL—K R
jointly-controlled Hl EBEKIE
entity, net FFE 33,694 47,300 - -
— Amount due froma  — EU— KM B
subsidiary R AR - - 279,710 267,356
Bank deposit at REEBEERP ZR1T
escrow account Ve 291,087 185,675 - -
Cash and cash ReERBESEED
equivalents 615,421 571,944 169 139
1,084,619 900,295 279,879 267,495
Financial liabilities W% £ 1%
At amortised cost bi7e £ IDIN
- Trade payables —BSENRIA (97,165) (65,209) - -
— Accrued expenses —ENBREEM
and other payables FERTFRIE (253,635) (142,118) (301) (196)
- Bank loans, secured —iR{TE K
HIKH (2,993,501) (3,509,413) - -
(3,344,301)  (3,716,740) (301) (196)
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46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current and
previous years.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of its borrowings, and trade and other
payables less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the debt to equity ratio at manageable level.

46. G Al b 4 B

AEBERER 2 TEZABRABRRAEEREL
BZREN o DA R E BRI R R R E A A
AR E R -

AEBEMOET BT ERLEARE ¥
HE(EH AR - ARERBRERRE - AEE
TARARIEEZ RS  ARREEERLE
TR < 3B AR PO R AR B
AL P BE -

AEEFNBEEEERL XEE(NERFER
AR ERER - BBHFENGE BN
FTANEEERE S FEMEN B GRS
RREEEBWHE - BERMRAM BT R
RZERGRENE AREE RSB REBE RS
LR PRI E IR 2 K o

2012 2011

—B——fF —FE——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEET T

Trade and other payables B 5 K HAb FEAS IR 460,875 312,427
Borrowings, secured BE - M 2,993,501 3,509,413
Total debt RIET 3,454,376 3,821,840
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEBY (615,421) (571,944)
Net debt B 2,838,955 3,249,896
Total equity HE %5 A8 % 13,802,206 10,277,734
Net debt to equity ratio o0 B 2R bb R 0.21:1 0.32:1




2012F G 7§ Annual Report 2012

207

47.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2012 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
operation

EMRY EELE

Notes to the Financial Statements

47. BEME A WS
R —F+_A=+—HZEEWBRFF

BT

Particulars of
nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital

BRORAEE HRERFHE

Percentage of
interest held by
the Company
NG
FERAEAL
Directly Indirectly

B WA M

Principal activities

IREHR

Allied Lucky Limited
RBARAE

Bond Rising Limited

Champ Shine Limited
ERERAA

Charm Wish Limited
BABRAT

Fagle Fund |.L.P

Eternal Bonus Group Limited

Fortune Together Limited
BYARAR

Golden Relay Company Limited
SEERAA

Goldprofit (Consultant) Services
Company Limited
2R (B REERAH

Goldwell Property Management
Limited
SENEERBRAR

Good Honest Properties Limited

HAEXERLT

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
ABRAES
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands

REHE

British Virgin Islands
AERLES

British Virgin Islands
EERLEE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
RERAEEEE 1T ERBR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
REREEIZT ERR

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
RERAEEEE 1T ERBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
IRERAEESE 1T EBR

Limited Partnership with capital
commitment of US$60,000,000
from the partners

BEREAEEA
BA¥% A60,000,000F L2 EARAE

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1REREEIETZ EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
REREEIZT ERR

99,998 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
2 non-voting deferred shares of

HK$1 each
99,008 B REEAK 1T, LBk
BERAEESE I T BRERELR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREEES I T L AR

100,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100,000 BRAEAB 1 T2 EBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
1REREEES 1T ERBR

£ B

100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 47%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Property investment

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Investment holding
RARK

Investment holding

RERRK

Property investment

Provision of building repairs,
maintenance and cleaning
services

REETEE  REREZRE

Provision of building
management service

RHEBTERRE

Property Investment
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47.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

47. FRMHE 2 w4 ()

RZE——F+_A=+—BHZEXEWEBRFF

2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation

HMAEL/ EELE

Particulars of
nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital

ERTRAEE HRMEAHE

BT (8)

Percentage of
interest held by
the Company
YN
iEsz: 34Epa 1
Directly Indirectly

B GE3

Principal activities

IERH

Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
EERLES REREEIZT . ERR RERR
Haven Investment Properties Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Property development
Limited &k 10,000k BREEES 1T EBR NELR
FEREREARAF
Honour Vantage Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
EERLES REREEIET LRK RERR
Maxrise Construction Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision for construction,
Engineering Limited i RERAEEEE 1T ERBR repairs and maintenance
RARETRAERAH services
REERE  BEREERY
School Investment Properties Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each - 100%  Property investment
Limited &k 1REREESE T LRR NERE
EEREREARAT
Sharp Investment Properties Hong Kong 99 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Property development
Limited Bl REBREESYIT SRR NELR
ERREHERRAA 1 non-voting deferred share of HK$1
REREBESE T BRFEELER
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each - 100%  Property investment
AE(PE)BRAF A REREEEE 1T EAR NERE
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
EERLEE HK$1 each RERR
100,001,000 GRAEAS1 T2 EBk
Soundwill Infrastructure Limited ~ Hong Kong 261,500,213 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
SHBERARAT i HKS1 each RERK
261,500, 213% BREABEL T
Soundwill Real Estate (China) British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding

Limited
cEGE(RE)BRAR

ABRAES

IREREEIET EBR

RERK
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47.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Strong Well Property
Management Limited
EENFERERAA]

Soundwill Capital Limited

Soundwill-ALPS Asset
Management Limited

Tang Lung Investment
Properties Limited
BRRENERRLA

Upper Wealthy Limited
RiHARAF

Vast Crown Enterprise Limited

LBEEBRAA

Warren Investment Properties
Limited

ERRENEBRAR

KEMIKERNSER
BRAR"

R RBE B ERAT

REMEHEHEXRARLA

EMEEEREREBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
operation

SRAL/ EENE

Hong Kong

Cayman lslands
REHs

Cayman slands

BEL

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
hE

BT (8)

Particulars of
nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital

BRORAEE HRERHE

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREEESI T L AR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1REREBIZT LAk

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1REFEAEIET Bk

1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
1,000k SREERB 1T EBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
1RERAERS T RR

10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
10,000 EREEES 1T EBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
1RERAERS 1T TRR

Registered capital of RMB25,000,000
A R AK%25,000,0007T

Registered capital of HK$12,500,000
&4 %E%12,500,0007

Paid-up capital of HK$3,750,000
BEIRAEHS,750,0007

Registered capital of RMB30,000,000
A A AR 30,000,000

Registered capital of RMB23,580,000
AR AK#%23,580,0007C

Percentage of
interest held by
the Company
NG
FEREAL
Directly Indirectly

= 3

- 100%

- 100%

- 51%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 51%

- 100%

- 85%

- 100%

B WA M

47. R 2 vl i (6])

R —F+_A=+—HZEEWBRFF

Principal activities

IRER

Provision of building
management service

REBTERRE

General partner of
Eagle Fund I.L.P.
LREEA

Investment manager of
Eagle Fund I.L.P.
LRABA

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property development

S

Property development

ESH

Provision of building renovation
and management service

REBTRERNZER

Property development

ES

Property development

EST
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47.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation

SRR EENE

BT (8)

Particulars of
nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital

Percentage of
interest held by
the Company
NG
FRERAAL
Directly Indirectly

E& 3

BRATRAEE/dRERFE

47. FRMHE 2 w4 ()

RZE——F+_A=+—BHZEXEWEBRFF

Principal activities

IRER

BNeBRAmERRR
BROE"

WREREATERER
BRDE"

ARSUBRTERRRRE
BRRE

SRENTEMRRREER
ﬁﬁai\\ﬁl*“

B EBRRRS
BARRE™

BETHHERERRS
AR

INeBBHHERRRRE
AR

DT B
BRDA™

EBePBHTEMRRER
BRAE™

HENTERRRRE
BRLE™

B¥n (28R B EERR
REEERRLA"

PRC
hE

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
FE

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
FE

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
FE

PRC
G

Registered capital of RMB10,000,000 - 100%
M ERARE10,000,0007

Registered capital of HK$10,000,000 - 100%
FHE A% %10,000,0007

Registered capital of RMB10,000,000 - 100%
&R ARE10,000,0007

Registered capital of HK$8,000,000 - 80%
# 1T & 7% 88,000,000

Registered capital of HK$12,500,000 - 80%
FHE A% %12,500,0007

Registered capital of HK$20,000,000 - 80%
FHf & A5#20,000,0007T

Registered capital of HK$10,000,000 - 80%
&7 7%%10,000,0007T

Registered capital of RMB30,000,000 - 80%
A A A K 30,000,000

Registered capital of HK$20,000,000 - 80%
FE & A7#20,000,0007

Registered capital of HK$30,000,000 - 80%
&A% #%30,000,0007T

Registered capital of HK$13,748,000 - 80%

FEABE13,748,000T

Urban infrastructure
development
AR RBER

Urban infrastructure
development
HMERREER

Urban infrastructure
development

WmERRIEER

Urban infrastructure
development
AR RBER

Urban infrastructure
development
ARSI ERE

Urban infrastructure
development

PmERRIEER

Urban infrastructure
development
W AR RBER

Urban infrastructure
development
AR REEE

Urban infrastructure
development

P ERRIEER

Urban infrastructure
development
AR RBER

Urban infrastructure
development
HMERREER
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47.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47, F 2 & 2 5 3E 45 (48)
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December R —F+-_A=+—HBZETEMBRREF
2012 are as follows: (Continued) BT (8)
Place of Particulars of Percentage of
incorporation/ nominal value of issued interest held by
operation share capital/registered capital the Company Principal activities
PN
HMARYL/ EERHE CRIRAEE/HEMERFE FEEEEA  TEEE
Directly Indirectly
EE GE3
BN ERERREEE PRC Registered capital of HK$16,000,000 - 80%  Urban infrastructure
BRAE™ i &A% 16,000,007 development
BMERRIEER
FEMTRLARESNRERR PRC Registered capital of HK$6,000,000 - 80%  Urban infrastructure
ERBRAR™ i A A7 6,000,000 development
ARSI ER
TEMHMEBERARAT™  PRC Registered capital of HK$20,000,000 - 80% Urban infrastructure
G &A% #20,000,0007T development
WmEAREEERE
EGmeHBNTEBRR PRC Registered capital of HK$50,000,000 - 80%  Urban infrastructure
BRAR™ e A A 50,000,0007T development
BMERRIEER
flmeEBamERER PRC Registered capital of HK$20,000,000 - 70%  Urban infrastructure
BRAF™ H B ARE#20,000,0007 development
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48.

49.

.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2012 are as follows:

Notes:

* These subsidiaries were established in PRC as limited liability
companies.

**  These subsidiaries were established in PRC as foreign wholly-owned
limited liability companies.

These subsidiaries were established in PRC as cooperative joint
ventures with limited liability.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of
the principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results
or assets of the Group.

EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 3 January 2013, 5,196,000 share options (the “Options”)
to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each of the Company were granted to certain
eligible individuals, including executive directors, under the
2011 Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
19 May 2011. The exercise price of the Options granted
is HK$15.76 per share. Details are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 3 January 2013.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Directors of the Company on 12 March 2018.
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